
 

B   O   S   T   O   N 
B O R O U G H  C O U N C I L  

 
Joint Chief Executive 

Rob Barlow 
 

 
Municipal Buildings 
Boston 
Lincolnshire   PE21 8QR 
Tel: 01205 314200 
Fax: 01205 364604 

 

 

 

14 May 2021 
 
TO MEMBERS OF THE AUDIT AND GOVERNANCE COMMITTEE 
 

 
NOTICE OF MEETING OF THE AUDIT & GOVERNANCE COMMITTEE 

 
Dear Councillor 
 

You are invited to attend a meeting of the Audit & Governance Committee on 
Monday, 24th May, 2021 at 6.30 pm 

in the Committee Room, Municipal Buildings, West Street, Boston PE21 8QR 

 
ROB BARLOW 
Joint Chief Executive 
 
Membership: 
  

Chairman: Councillor Tom Ashton 
Vice Chairman: Councillor George Cornah 
 Councillors Alison Austin, Richard Austin BEM, David Brown, 

Anton Dani, Anne Dorrian, Frank Pickett, Peter Watson and 
Mr Alan Pickering 

 
 

A G E N D A 
 
PART I - PRELIMINARIES 
 

A   MINUTES (Pages 1 - 6) 
 

 To sign and confirm the minutes of the last meeting, held on 29th March 2021. 
 

B   APOLOGIES  
 

 To receive apologies for absence. 
 

C   DECLARATION OF INTERESTS  
 

 To receive declarations of interests in respect of any item on the agenda. 
 

Public Document Pack



D   PUBLIC QUESTIONS  
 

 To answer any written questions received from members of the public no later than 
5 p.m. two clear working days prior to the meeting – for this meeting the deadline 
is 5 p.m. on Wednesday, 19th May 2021. 
 

 
PART II - AGENDA ITEMS 
 

1   AUDIT COMPLETION REPORT FOLLOW-UP LETTER (Pages 7 - 16) 
 

 A report by Mark Surridge, Director, Mazars 
 

2   ANNUAL AUDIT LETTER (Pages 17 - 32) 
 

 A report by Mark Surridge, Director, Mazars 
 

3   INTERNAL AUDIT - PROGRESS REPORT 2021/22 (Pages 33 - 52) 
 

 A report by John Scott, Internal Audit Manager 
 

4   RISK REPORT QUARTER 3 2020/21 (Pages 53 - 58) 
 

 A report by Suzanne Rolfe, IT & Transformation Manager 
 

5   INTERNAL AUDIT ANNUAL REPORT 2020/21 (Pages 59 - 72) 
 

 A report by John Scott, Internal Audit Manager 
 

6   TRANSFER OF INTERNAL AUDIT SERVICE (Pages 73 - 76) 
 

 A report by Adrian Sibley, Section 151 Officer 
 

7   ANNUAL FRAUD PERFORMANCE REPORT (Pages 77 - 86) 
 

 A report by the Customer Contact Operations & Delivery Manager (PSPSL) 
 

8   WORK PROGRAMME (Pages 87 - 88) 
 

 For Members to consider the Committee’s work programme. 
 

 
Notes: 
 

The person to contact about the agenda and documents for this meeting is Janette Collier, 
Senior Democratic Services Officer, Municipal Buildings, Boston, 01205 314227    email: 
janette.collier@boston.gov.uk  
 

Council Members who are not able to attend the meeting should notify 01205 314227    
email: janette.collier@boston.gov.uk as soon as possible. 
 

Alternative Versions 
Should you wish to have the agenda or report in an alternative format such as larger text, 
Braille or a specific language, please contact Democratic Services on direct dial (01205) 
314226 



AUDIT & GOVERNANCE COMMITTEE 
 

29 March 2021 

Present: Councillor Tom Ashton (Chairman), Councillors Alison Austin, George Cornah, 
Anton Dani, Anne Dorrian, Frank Pickett, Peter Watson and Mr Alan Pickering 
 
In attendance: Councillor Jonathan Noble, Portfolio Holder for Finance 
 
Guests:  
Richard Tanner – Portfolio Manager for the Fund and Head of UK Business 

Michael Shears – Assistant PM, Asset Management Executive Director) 
Kari Clarke – Investor Relations Associate Director 
 
Officers –  
Section 151 Officer, Head of Internal Audit (City of Lincoln Council), Principal Auditor 
(City of Lincoln Council), External Auditor (Mazars) and Senior Democratic Services 
Officer 
 
64   MINUTES 

 
The minutes of the meeting held on 25th January 2021 were agreed as a correct record 
and would be signed by the Chairman. 
 

Action: JC 
Produce an action sheet after meetings so that timelines can be added to any actions 
agreed. 

 
65   APOLOGIES 

 
None. 
 
66   DECLARATION OF INTERESTS 

 
None. 
 
67   PUBLIC QUESTIONS 

 
None. 
 
68   APPOINTMENT OF VICE-CHAIRMAN 

 

RESOLVED: That Councillor George Cornah be appointed Vice-Chairman for the 
remainder of the Municipal Year. 

 
69   FUND MANAGER PRESENTATION 

 
The Committee considered a request from the representatives from AEW Property Fund 
to receive their presentation in exempt session, owing to the commercial sensitivity of 
information contained within it; it would only be possible to make the presentation in 
public by removing integral parts from it, meaning that Members would not receive the 
full picture.   
 

Page 1

Agenda Item A



Audit & Governance Committee 
29 March 2021 
 

IT WAS RESOLVED that under Section 100 (A) (iv) of the Local Government Act 
1972, as amended by the Local Government (Access to Information)(Variation) 
Order 2006, the public and press be excluded from the meeting for the following 
items of business on the grounds that it involved the likely disclosure of exempt 
information as defined in paragraph 3 of Schedule 12A of the Order. 

 
The AEW representatives then gave their presentation and answered a range of 
questions. 
 

Action: JC 

 Email AEW’s PowerPoint presentation to Members; 

 Email future PowerPoint documents to Members prior to future presentations. 

 
The Chairman thanked the representatives from their presentation, which had given 
reassurance to Members that the company was managing the Council’s investment well 
and it was performing. 
 
[Councillor Dorrian left the meeting at this point.] 
 

IT WAS RESOLVED that the meeting be moved back into public session. 

 
70   AUDIT STRATEGY MEMORANDUM - YEAR ENDING 31 MARCH 2020 

 
Mark Surridge presented Mazars’ Audit Strategy Memorandum for the year ending 31 
March 2020. 
 
The purpose of the document was to summarise Mazars’ audit approach, highlight 
significant audit risks and areas of key judgements, and provide the Committee with the 
details of the audit team.  
 
The document had been prepared following Mazars’ initial planning discussions with 
management, as the basis for a discussion around their audit approach.  
 
Mr Surridge thanked the finance officers for their complete support, enabling Mazars to 
carry out their work.   
 
The pandemic had extended the timeline for completion of work; the accounts would be 
produced by 31st July and published by 30th September 2021. 
 
Mazars had identified the following relevant risks to the audit of the financial statements, 
which were deemed to be significant:  
1 Management override of controls  
2 Net defined benefit liability valuation  
3 Valuation of land and buildings  
4 Covid-19 grant recognition 
 
The first three were the same as for the previous year and all were the same as for the 
majority of local authorities.  The report set out a summary of Mazars’ audit response to 
these risks. 

Page 2



Audit & Governance Committee 
29 March 2021 

 

 
Mr Surridge then highlighted Mazars’ Value For Money (VFM) work.  The new Code of 
Audit Practice (the Code) had changed the way in which auditors reported their findings 
in relation to VFM arrangements from 2020/21. Whilst still required to be satisfied that 
the Council had proper arrangements in place, Mazars would now report by exception in 
their auditor’s report where they had identified significant weakness in those 
arrangements. This was a significant change to the requirements under the previous 
Code, which required them to give a conclusion on the Council’s arrangements as part 
of their auditor’s report. 
 
Under the new Code, the key output of their work on VFM arrangements would be a 
commentary on those arrangements, which would form part of the Auditor’s Annual 
Report.  
 
The Code required Mazars to structure their commentary to report under three specified 
criteria:  
1. Financial sustainability – how the Council planned and managed its resources to 
ensure it could continue to deliver its services  
2. Governance – how the Council ensured that it made informed decisions and properly 
managed its risks  
3. Improving economy, efficiency and effectiveness – how the Council used information 
about its costs and performance to improve the way it managed and delivers its 
services. 
 
This “commentary report” would be made public and Mr Surridge assured Members it 
would be of the highest quality. 
 
The Chairman thanked Mr Surridge for his report, which was noted by the Committee. 
 
71   COMBINED ASSURANCE - STATUS REPORT 2020/21 

 
John Scott, Internal Audit Manager, presented the Combined Assurance Status Report 
for 2020/21. 
 
Combined assurance was obtained by speaking to senior and operational managers, 
working with corporate functions and using third party inspections and the outcome of 
Internal Audit work.  It would feed into the Annual Audit Plan for 2021/22 and the 
Council’s Annual Governance Statement.   
 
The report concluded that the Council had established and varied assurance 
arrangements in place to manage risk and ensure services were delivered to a high 
standard.  Internal Audit was pleased to see this was working well and evidenced with 
high levels of assurance. The Council had a much-improved financial position since 
joining the Strategic Alliance with East Lindsey District Council (ELDC) and this was 
helping increase resilience in many service areas. This newfound advantage would be 
used to improve areas as required.  
 
The Council’s Strategic Risk Register was regularly reviewed, and risks were being 
effectively managed.  The Assistant Directors had provided summaries of the risks 
relating to their service areas and these were set out in the report along with the overall 
assurance direction of travel, in terms of red, amber or green with respect to critical 

Page 3



Audit & Governance Committee 
29 March 2021 
 

activities.  There had been changes in the risks, with more rated as amber and fewer 
rated green, but this was not a particular concern; the same as for other authorities, 
many related to the impact of the Covid 19 pandemic, and also to the effect of the 
Strategic Alliance process.   
 
The layout of the report was commended, though explanation of the abbreviations 
PCIDSS and ROPA was required.   
 
In response to questions, the Internal Audit Manager explained that the reference to 
‘lack of visibility of contracts’ related to shared visibility following the Strategic Alliance.  
The Section 151 Officer explained that the text in report for each service area was each 
Assistant Director’s own wording.  The Princess Royal Sports Arena had a red rating as 
its rent had not been paid; the facility was receiving some compensation for its use as a 
mass vaccination centre, but reported that it was not sufficient to enable the rent to be 
paid in the current circumstances.   
 
The Chairman commented that the report indicated a significant impact in many areas 
due to the pandemic.   
 
The Committee noted the report. 
 
72   INTERNAL AUDIT PROGRESS REPORT 2020/21 

 
John Scott, Internal Audit Manager, presented the progress report on Internal Audit work 
for 2020/21. 
 
All remaining 2020/21 audits had been started and it was expected that the Plan would 
be substantially complete by the end of the financial year with reports at draft stage but 
might not be finalised.   
 
One assurance review had been completed, the Covid Assessment, which had been 
given Substantial assurance. 
 
Two audit reports described as at draft stage and three as being in progress were now 
all at the stage of being finalised: 
• Council Tax 
• ICT Security Assurance 
• Housing Benefits & Council Tax Support 
• Payroll 
• Accountancy Key Controls 
 
Only one, the Governance, Risk & Fraud audit, was still in progress.   
 
Other significant work included the completion of the annual Combined Assurance 
process, presented elsewhere on the agenda.  Internal Audit had worked closely with 
the East Lindsey District Council (ELDC) Internal Audit team in order to streamline the 
process for the Strategic Alliance. 
 
Again, the Draft 2021/22 Internal Audit Plan, also presented separately on the agenda, 
followed close working with the ELDC Internal Audit team.  The result was a plan that 
was relevant to the Alliance and a number of joint audits. 

Page 4



Audit & Governance Committee 
29 March 2021 

 

 
A detailed update giving the position regarding Audit Recommendations as at 31st 
December was attached at Appendix 3.  Recommendations were being implemented 
and none had needed to be brought to the Committee’s attention.  A number had been 
extended to the end of March 2021 or later, either due to the impact of the pandemic or 
the process of the Strategic Alliance, and a follow-up report would be made at the 
Committee’s next meeting.  
 
The Committee noted the report. 
 
73   DRAFT INTERNAL AUDIT PLAN 2021/22 

 
John Scott, Internal Audit Manager, presented the draft Internal Audit Plan for 2021/22, 
as at 1st April 2021.  
 
The plan detailed the activities to be audited and the indicative scope for each audit and 
was presented for Members’ comments.  The plan delivered assurance within agreed 
resources, which remained the same as the previous year at 145 days.  The plan would 
be amended throughout the year to reflect changing assurance needs. 
 
The plan had been developed using various sources including external intelligence, local 
knowledge and the meetings held with Assistant Directors and the Senior Leadership 
Team as a whole.   
 
The Audit Focus for 2021/22 was set out with information on key audit areas and the 
rationale for their inclusion in the audit strategy and plan.   
 
The impact of Covid19 on the public sector had been unprecedented. Internal Audit had 
carried out some assurance work in this area during 2020/21 and the plan remained 
flexible to take account of this and other evolving risks.  Appendix A outlined the various 
audits to be undertaken within each area. Appendix B contained those areas, which 
Internal Audit had not been able to include in the plan, but management might wish to 
consider whether they should be included. 
 
Due to the formation of the Strategic Alliance between the Council and East Lindsey 
District Council (ELDC) and the Council’s partnership with Public Sector Partnership 
Services (PSPS), Internal Audit had been working closely with ELDC’s Internal Audit 
team, both being part of Assurance Lincolnshire.  Many audits were the same or similar; 
they were undertaken separately, but jointly, as it was beneficial to align them as much 
as possible. 
 
The Chairman thanked the Internal Audit team for their work and the Committee noted 
the report. 
 
74   WORK PROGRAMME 

 
Members considered the Committee’s work programme. 
 
The Chairman thanked all parties for their input during the year.   
 

Page 5



Audit & Governance Committee 
29 March 2021 
 

The Section 151 Officer advised the Committee that the next agenda would include a 
work programme for the full year ahead.  Members should e-mail any issues they 
wished to be included.   
 

Action: AS 
Include a work programme for the whole of 2021/22 on the next agenda. 

 
 
 
 
 

The Meeting ended at 8.45 pm 
 

Page 6



 

 

 

Mazars LLP 
2 Chamberlain Square  
Birmingham 
B3 3AX 
 
Tel: +44 (0)121 232 9500 
www.mazars.co.uk 

 

Mazars LLP 
Mazars LLP is the UK firm of Mazars, an integrated international advisory and accountancy organisation. Mazars LLP is a limited liability partnership registered 
in England and Wales with registered number OC308299 and with its registered office at Tower Bridge House, St Katharine’s Way, London E1W 1DD. 
Registered to carry on audit work in the UK by the Institute of Chartered Accountants in England and Wales. Details about our audit registration can be viewed 
at www.auditregister.org.uk under reference number C001139861. VAT number: GB 839 8356 73 

Page 1 of 9 

Audit and Governance Committee Members 
Boston Borough Council 
Municipal Buildings 
West Street 
Boston 
Lincolnshire 
PE21 8QR 

  

  
Direct line 07875 974 291 

Email mark.surridge@mazars.co.uk 

  11 May 2021 

 

Dear Audit and Governance Committee Members 

Audit Completion Report – follow-up letter  
Following on from our recent meeting and as required by International Standards on Auditing (UK and 
Ireland), I am writing to communicate the conclusion of those matters that were marked as outstanding 
within the Audit completion report dated 16 October 2020. 

The outstanding matters and the conclusions reached are detailed below: 

Audit area Status Description of outstanding matters 

Property, plant and 
equipment 

Complete We have received the residual audit evidence and our work is 
complete, with a single control deficiency noted in respect of 
the Council’s current arrangements. This is detailed at 
Appendix 1. 

As highlighted previously a ‘material valuation uncertainty’ 
has been disclosed by the Council’s valuer in respect of its 
property, assets. This has subsequently been disclosed in 
the Council’s financial statements within Note 4. As the value 
of these assets as recorded on the balance sheet is material, 
this requires us to include an ‘emphasis of matters’ 
paragraph in our Audit Report. The wording of our Audit 
Report is set out in Appendix 3. 

Loans Incomplete We have failed to receive the residual audit evidence, being 
direct confirmation from the lender of a loan balance of 
£1,000k from State Street, despite repeated efforts from the 
Council and ourselves. 

As this loan balance exceeds our level of materiality we are 
unable to express an opinion over its completeness, 
existence and valuation in addition to confirming the 
Council’s overall obligation for this item. 

The Council believes that there is no prospect of obtaining 
this confirmation in the short term, and consequently we are 
required to issue a qualified opinion on the Council’s financial 
statements in respect of this matter. The wording of our Audit 
Report is set out in Appendix 3. 

Page 7

Agenda Item 1

http://www.mazars.co.uk/


 
 

 

 

 Page 2 of 9 

Audit area Status Description of outstanding matters 

Pensions Complete We have received the residual audit evidence and our work is 
complete. We have identified a misstatement arising as a 
result of the Council receiving an updated IAS19 pensions 
valuation report which management has decided not to 
adjust. This is detailed in Appendix 2. 

As a result of a ‘material valuation uncertainty’ being 
disclosed on the Pension Fund’s accounts relating to its 
holding of property assets, it has become necessary for the 
Council to correspondingly reflect this uncertainty within its 
own accounts. This has subsequently been disclosed in the 
Council’s financial statements within Note 4. As the Council’s 
share of those assets as recorded on the balance sheet is 
material, this requires us to include an ‘emphasis of matters’ 
paragraph in our Audit Report. The wording of our Audit 
Report is set out in Appendix 3. 

Whole of 
Government 
Accounts (WGA) 

Complete We have now received the National Audit Office’s Group 
Instructions for local authority 2019/20 audits and completed 
the work necessary in respect of these. 

We are therefore able to issue our audit completion 
certificate. 

Audit quality control 
and completion 
procedures 

Complete We have undertaken the outstanding procedures and 
received the residual audit documentation required and our 
work is complete. 

There are no matters arising to report to the Committee. 

 
If you wish to discuss these or any other points, then please do not hesitate to contact me. 

 

Yours sincerely 

 

Mark Surridge 
Mazars LLP 
  

Page 8



 
 

 

 

 Page 3 of 9 

Appendix 1 – Internal Control Recommendations 

 

  

 
 
 
Significant deficiencies in internal control – Level 1 
 

Description of deficiency 
Maintenance of property asset information 
Our testing of the Council’s property assets has confirmed that it has not maintained an accurate database 
of its portfolio of assets, specifically the floor areas of buildings. As the floor areas of buildings are utilised 
by the valuer in some of their valuations it is essential that such records are maintained to ensure accurate 
valuations are undertaken and reported at each year end. 

Potential effects 
The Council’s property valuations may be materially misstated within the financial statements as a result of 
inaccurate floor areas being used in valuations. 

Recommendation 
The Council should ensure that complete and accurate records are maintained in respect of its property 
assets to ensure appropriate valuations are able to be undertaken. 

Management response 
The recommendation is noted and agreed. Floor areas of buildings will be recorded and maintained for 
future asset valuations. 

 

Priority ranking Description Number of issues

1 (high) In our view, there is potential for financial loss, damage to reputation or loss of 
information. This may have implications for the achievement of business strategic 
objectives. The recommendation should be taken into consideration by 
management immediately.

2

2 (medium) In our view, there is a need to strengthen internal control or enhance business 
efficiency. The recommendations should be actioned in the near future. 

0

3 (low) In our view, internal control should be strengthened in these additional areas when 
practicable.

0

Page 9



 
 

 

 

 Page 4 of 9 

Appendix 1 – Internal Control Recommendations (Continued) 

 

Description of deficiency 
Loan confirmations 
Our testing of the Council’s loans balances has confirmed that it does not have relevant contact details for 
the provider of one of its loans. As these details are required to effectively monitor and control the 
Council’s liability it is essential that such details are obtained and maintained over the lifetime of its 
obligation. 

Potential effects 
The Council’s may not be able to effectively service its contractual obligations in respect of it loans 
balances. 

Recommendation 
The Council should ensure that complete and accurate records are maintained in respect of its loans 
balances to ensure appropriate communications and debt servicing are able to be undertaken. 

Management response 
The loan balance is long standing (20 years) with confirmations previously having been received annually. 
The recommendation is noted and agreed. Once future communication occurs we will record and maintain 
contact details. 
 

Page 10



 
 

 

 

 Page 5 of 9 

 

Appendix 2 – Summary of Unadjusted Misstatements 

We set out below the additional misstatements arising following the completion of those matters that 
were marked as outstanding within the Audit completion report dated 16 October 2020. 

Unadjusted misstatements 2019/20 
We have identified identified a single misstatement that management has decided not to adjust. 

  
Comprehensive 

Income and 
Expenditure Statement 

Balance Sheet 

  
Dr (£’000) Cr (£’000) Dr (£’000) Cr (£’000) 

1 Cr: CIES – Chief finance officer 
(Expenditure) 

Cr: BS – Pensions liability 

Dr: BS – Unusable reserves – Pensions 
reserve 

Dr: MiRS – Adjustments between accounting 
basis & funding basis under regulations 

 
 

 

 
 

123 

(123)  
 

 

42 
 

 
 

(42) 

 
Revision to IAS19 liability following receipt of an updated report to take account of the McCloud and 
Goodwin legal cases and revised pension fund asset valuations. 

This error would also have consequential impacts for the cash flow statement and its related notes, 
and Notes 7, 9 and 14. 

 
Total Unadjusted misstatements 123 (123) 42 (42) 

  

Page 11



 
 

 

 

 Page 6 of 9 

 

Appendix 3 – Audit Report Wording 

We set out below our proposed Auditors’ Report on the Council’s 2019/20 financial statements: 

Independent auditor’s report to the members of Boston Borough Council 
Report on the financial statements 
 
Qualified opinion 
We have audited the financial statements of Boston Borough Council (‘the Council’) for the year ended 31 March 2020, which 
comprise the Comprehensive Income and Expenditure Statement, the Movement in Reserves Statement, the Balance Sheet, 
the Cash Flow Statement and notes to the financial statements, including a summary of significant accounting policies. The 
financial reporting framework that has been applied in their preparation is applicable law and the CIPFA/LASAAC Code of 
Practice on Local Authority Accounting in the United Kingdom 2019/20. 
 
In our opinion, except for the possible effects of the matter described in the Basis for Qualified Opinion section of our report, 
the financial statements: 

• give a true and fair view of the financial position of the Council as at 31st March 2020 and of its expenditure and 
income for the year then ended; and 

• have been properly prepared in accordance with the CIPFA/LASAAC Code of Practice on Local Authority Accounting 
in the United Kingdom 2019/20. 

 
Basis for qualified opinion 
Included in the carrying value of the Council’s long-term borrowing in the balance sheet of £16.4m as at 31st March 2020, is 
£1m of Other Market Debt as described at Note 19. The audit evidence available to us for this Other Market Debt was limited 
because we were unable to obtain sufficient assurance over the existence and valuation of the loan as at 31 March 2020, 
including being unable to obtain direct confirmation from the lender leading to a potential overstatement of long term borrowing 
by £1m.. 
 
We conducted our audit in accordance with International Standards on Auditing (UK) (ISAs (UK)) and applicable law. Our 
responsibilities under those standards are further described in the Auditor’s responsibilities section of our report. We are 
independent of the Council in accordance with the ethical requirements that are relevant to our audit of the financial statements 
in the UK, including the FRC’s Ethical Standard, and we have fulfilled our other ethical responsibilities in accordance with these 
requirements. We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our 
opinion. 
 
Emphasis of Matter – Effect of the Covid-19 pandemic on the valuation of property, investment properties and pension 
fund property investment assets 
We draw attention to note 4 of the financial statements, which describes the effects of the Covid-19 pandemic on the valuation 
of the Council’s property assets, investment properties and the valuation of the Council’s share of Lincolnshire Pension Fund’s 
property investment assets. As disclosed in note 4 of the financial statements, the Council’s and Pension Fund’s valuers 
included a ‘material valuation uncertainty’ declaration within their reports as a result of the Covid-19 pandemic. Our opinion is 
not modified in respect of this matter. 
 
Conclusions relating to going concern 
We have nothing to report in respect of the following matters in relation to which the ISAs (UK) require us to report to you 
where: 

• the Chief Finance Officers’ use of the going concern basis of accounting in the preparation of the financial statements 
is not appropriate; or 

• the Chief Finance Officer has not disclosed in the financial statements any identified material uncertainties that may 
cast significant doubt about the Council’s ability to continue to adopt the going concern basis of accounting for a 
period of at least twelve months from the date when the financial statements are authorised for issue. 

  

Page 12



 
 

 

 

 Page 7 of 9 

 

Appendix 3 – Audit Report Wording (Continued) 

Other information 
The Chief Finance Officer is responsible for the other information. The other information comprises the information included in 
the Statement of Accounts, other than the financial statements and our auditor’s report thereon. Our opinion on the financial 
statements does not cover the other information and, except to the extent otherwise explicitly stated in our report, we do not 
express any form of assurance conclusion thereon. 
 
In connection with our audit of the financial statements, our responsibility is to read the other information and, in doing so, 
consider whether the other information is materially inconsistent with the financial statements or our knowledge obtained in the 
audit or otherwise appears to be materially misstated. If we identify such material inconsistencies or apparent material 
misstatements, we are required to determine whether there is a material misstatement in the financial statements or a material 
misstatement of the other information. If, based on the work we have performed, we conclude that there is a material 
misstatement of this other information, we are required to report that fact. 
 
We have nothing to report in this regard. 
 
Responsibilities of the Chief Finance Officer for the financial statements 
As explained more fully in the Responsibilities of the Chief Finance Officer, the Chief Finance Officer is responsible for the 
preparation of the Statement of Accounts, which includes the financial statements, in accordance with proper practices as set 
out in the CIPFA/LASAAC Code of Practice on Local Authority Accounting in the United Kingdom 2019/20, and for being 
satisfied that they give a true and fair view. The Director of Resources is also responsible for such internal control as the 
Director of Resources determines is necessary to enable the preparation of financial statements that are free from material 
misstatement, whether due to fraud or error. 
 
The Chief Finance Officer is required to comply with the CIPFA/LASAAC Code of Practice on Local Authority Accounting in 
the United Kingdom 2019/20 and prepare the financial statements on a going concern basis, unless the Council is informed of 
the intention for dissolution without transfer of services or function to another entity. The Chief Finance Officer is responsible 
for assessing each year whether or not it is appropriate for the Council to prepare its accounts on the going concern basis and 
disclosing, as applicable, matters related to going concern. 
 
Auditor’s responsibilities for the audit of the financial statements 
Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the financial statements as a whole are free from material 
misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, and to issue an auditor’s report that includes our opinion. Reasonable assurance 
is a high level of assurance, but is not a guarantee that an audit conducted in accordance with ISAs (UK) will always detect a 
material misstatement when it exists. Misstatements can arise from fraud or error and are considered material if, individually 
or in the aggregate, they could reasonably be expected to influence the economic decisions of users taken on the basis of 
these financial statements. 
 
A further description of our responsibilities for the audit of the financial statements is located on the Financial Reporting 
Council’s website at www.frc.org.uk/auditorsresponsibilities. This description forms part of our auditor’s report. 
 

Matters on which we are required to report by exception under the Code of Audit Practice 
We are required by the Code of Audit Practice to report to you if: 

• we issue a report in the public interest under section 24 of the Local Audit and Accountability Act 2014; 

• we make a recommendation under section 24 of the Local Audit and Accountability Act 2014; or 

• we exercise any other special powers of the auditor under sections 28, 29 or 31 of the Local Audit and Accountability 
Act 2014. 

 
We have nothing to report in these respects. 
  

Page 13

http://www.frc.org.uk/auditorsresponsibilities


 
 

 

 

 Page 8 of 9 

Appendix 3 – Audit Report Wording (Continued) 

 
Conclusion on Boston Borough Council’s arrangements for securing economy, efficiency and 
effectiveness in the use of resources 
 
Conclusion 
On the basis of our work, having regard to the guidance on the specified criterion issued by the Comptroller and Auditor General 
in April 2020, we are satisfied that, in all significant respects, Boston Borough Council has put in place proper arrangements 
to secure economy, efficiency and effectiveness in its use of resources for the year ended 31 March 2020. 
 
Basis for conclusion 
We have undertaken our review in accordance with the Code of Audit Practice issued by the Comptroller and Auditor General, 
having regard to the guidance on the specified criterion issued in April 2020, as to whether the Council had proper 
arrangements to ensure it took properly informed decisions and deployed resources to achieve planned and sustainable 
outcomes for taxpayers and local people. The Comptroller and Auditor General determined this criterion as that necessary for 
us to consider in satisfying ourselves whether the Council put in place proper arrangements for securing economy, efficiency 
and effectiveness in its use of resources for the year ended 31 March 2020. 
 
We planned our work in accordance with the Code of Audit Practice. Based on our risk assessment, we undertook such work 
as we considered necessary to form a view on whether, in all significant respects, the Council had put in place proper 
arrangements to secure economy, efficiency and effectiveness in its use of resources. 
 
Responsibilities of the Council 
The Council is responsible for putting in place proper arrangements to secure economy, efficiency and effectiveness in its use 
of resources, to ensure proper stewardship and governance, and to review regularly the adequacy and effectiveness of these 
arrangements. 
 
Auditor’s responsibilities for the review of arrangements for securing economy, efficiency and effectiveness in the 
use of resources 
We are required under section 20(1)(c) of the Local Audit and Accountability Act 2014 to satisfy ourselves that the Council has 
made proper arrangements for securing economy, efficiency and effectiveness in its use of resources. The Code of Audit 
Practice requires us to report to you our conclusion relating to proper arrangements. We are not required to consider, nor have 
we considered, whether all aspects of the Council’s arrangements for securing economy, efficiency and effectiveness in its 
use of resources are operating effectively. 
 

Use of the audit report 
This report is made solely to the members of Boston Borough Council, as a body, in accordance with part 5 of the Local Audit 
and Accountability Act 2014 and as set out in paragraph 44 of the Statement of Responsibilities of Auditors and Audited Bodies 
published by Public Sector Audit Appointments Limited. Our audit work has been undertaken so that we might state to the 
members of the Council those matters we are required to state to them in an auditor’s report and for no other purpose. To the 
fullest extent permitted by law, we do not accept or assume responsibility to anyone other than the members of the Council, 
as a body, for our audit work, for this report, or for the opinions we have formed. 
  

Page 14



 
 

 

 

 Page 9 of 9 

Appendix 3 – Audit Report Wording (Continued) 

 
Certificate 
We certify that we have completed the audit of Boston Borough Council in accordance with the requirements of the Local Audit 
and Accountability Act 2014 and the Code of Audit Practice. 
 

 

 

Mark Surridge 
For and on behalf of Mazars LLP 

2 Chamberlain Square  
Birmingham 
B3 3AX 

12 May 2021 

Page 15



This page is intentionally left blank



Annual Audit Letter

Boston Borough Council

Year ending 31 March 2020

Page 17

Agenda Item 2



Contents

01

02

03

04

05

06

Executive summary

Audit of the financial statements

Value for money conclusion

Other reporting responsibilities

Our fees

Forward look

1

Our reports are prepared in the context of the ‘Statement of responsibilities of auditors and audited bodies’ issued by Public Sector
Audit Appointments Ltd. Reports and letters prepared by appointed auditors and addressed to members or officers are prepared for
the sole use of the Council. No responsibility is accepted to any member or officer in their individual capacity or to any third party. Our
written consent must first be obtained before this document, or any part of it, is disclosed to a third party.

Mazars LLP is the UK firm of Mazars, an international advisory and accountancy group. Mazars LLP is registered by the Institute of
Chartered Accountants in England and Wales.

Page 18



1. EXECUTIVE SUMMARY

Purpose of the Annual Audit Letter
Our Annual Audit Letter summarises the work we have undertaken as the auditor for Boston Borough
Council (the Council) for the year ended 31 March 2020. Although this letter is addressed to the Council,
it is designed to be read by a wider audience including members of the public and other external
stakeholders.

Our responsibilities are defined by the Local Audit and Accountability Act 2014 (the 2014 Act) and the
Code of Audit Practice issued by the National Audit Office (the NAO). The detailed sections of this letter
provide details on those responsibilities, the work we have done to discharge them, and the key findings
arising from our work. These are summarised below.

Executive summary
Audit of the 

financial 
statements

Value for 
money 

conclusion

Other reporting 
responsibilities Our fees Forward look

2

Area of responsibility Summary

Audit of the financial 
statements

Our auditor’s report issued on 12 May 2021 included our opinion, 
except for the matters described in the Basis for Qualified Opinion 
section, that the financial statements: 
• give a true and fair view of the Council’s financial position as at 31 

March 2020 and of its expenditure and income for the year then 
ended; and

• have been prepared properly in accordance with the 
CIPFA/LASAAC Code of Practice on Local Authority Accounting in 
the United Kingdom 2019/20.

Other information published 
alongside the audited 
financial statements

Our auditor’s report included our opinion that: 
• the other information in the Statement of Accounts is consistent 

with the audited financial statements.

Value for money conclusion

Our auditor’s report concluded that we are satisfied that in all 
significant respects, the Council has put in place proper arrangements 
to secure economy, efficiency and effectiveness in its use of 
resources for the year ended 31 March 2020.

Reporting to the group auditor

In line with group audit instructions, issued by the NAO on 4th

November, we reported to the group auditor in line with the 
requirements applicable to the Council’s Whole of Government 
Accounts return.

Statutory reporting 

Our auditor’s report confirmed that we did not use our powers under 
s24 of the 2014 Act to issue a report in the public interest or to make 
written recommendations to the Council.

The report also confirmed that we did not exercise any other special 
powers of the auditor under sections 28, 29 or 31 of the 2014 Act.

Page 19



2. AUDIT OF THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

Executive summary
Audit of the 

financial 
statements

Value for 
money 

conclusion

Other reporting 
responsibilities Our fees Forward look

3

Opinion on the financial statements Qualified

The scope of our audit and the results of our work
The purpose of our audit is to provide reasonable assurance to users that the financial statements are free
from material error. We do this by expressing an opinion on whether the statements are prepared, in all
material respects, in line with the financial reporting framework applicable to the Council and whether they
give a true and fair view of the Council's financial position as at 31 March 2020 and of its financial
performance for the year then ended.

Our audit was conducted in accordance with the requirements of the Code of Audit Practice issued by the
NAO, and International Standards on Auditing (ISAs). These require us to consider whether:

• the accounting policies are appropriate to the Council's circumstances and have been consistently
applied and adequately disclosed;

• the significant accounting estimates made by management in the preparation of the financial
statements are reasonable; and

• the overall presentation of the financial statements provides a true and fair view.

Our auditor’s report stated that, except for the effects of the matter described in the Basis for Qualified
Opinion section, in our view, the financial statements give a true and fair view of the Council’s financial
position as at 31 March 2020 and of its financial performance for the year then ended.

Our qualified opinion extended to our inability to obtain sufficient appropriate evidence to conclude that a
single material loan balance was correctly reflected in the financial statements and as such were, as a
whole, free from material misstatement. Council Officer’s made a sustained and continuing effort to contact
the loan provider and obtain the confirmation, however up to the date of issuing our opinion, it remained
outstanding.

Our auditor’s report was further modified to include an emphasis of matter paragraph. This drew attention to
the financial statement disclosure explaining that COVID-19 had contributed to ‘material valuation
uncertainty’ in the valuation of the Council’s property, plant and equipment, investment properties and assets
held for sale and in the Council’s share of Lincolnshire Pension Fund’s property investment assets included
in the estimated net Pension Liability.

Page 20



2. AUDIT OF THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

Executive summary
Audit of the 

financial 
statements

Value for 
money 

conclusion

Other reporting 
responsibilities Our fees Forward look

4

Our approach to materiality
We apply the concept of materiality when planning and performing our audit, and when evaluating the effect
of misstatements identified as part of our work. We consider the concept of materiality at numerous stages
throughout the audit process, in particular when determining the nature, timing and extent of our audit
procedures, and when evaluating the effect of uncorrected misstatements. An item is considered material if
its misstatement or omission could reasonably be expected to influence the economic decisions of users of
the financial statements.

Judgements about materiality are made in the light of surrounding circumstances and are affected by both
qualitative and quantitative factors. As a result we have set materiality for the financial statements as a whole
(financial statement materiality) and a lower level of materiality for specific items of account (specific
materiality) due to the nature of these items or because they attract public interest. We also set a threshold
for reporting identified misstatements to the Audit and Governance Committee. We call this our trivial
threshold.

The table below provides details of the materiality levels applied in the audit of the financial statements for
the year ended 31 March 2020:

Financial statement 
materiality 

Our financial statement materiality is based 
on circa. 2% of gross operating expenditure.

£925k

Trivial threshold
Our trivial threshold is based on 3% of 
financial statement materiality.

£28k

Specific materiality

We have applied a lower level of materiality 
to the following areas of the accounts:

- Termination payments

- Senior Officer Remuneration

- Members Allowances

- External Audit Fee

£1k

£5k

£43k

£9k

Page 21



2. AUDIT OF THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

Executive summary
Audit of the 

financial 
statements

Value for 
money 

conclusion

Other reporting 
responsibilities Our fees Forward look

5

Our response to significant risks
As part of our continuous planning procedures we considered whether there were risks of material
misstatement in the Council's financial statements that required special audit consideration. We reported
significant risks identified at the planning stage to the Audit and Governance Committee within our Audit
Strategy Memorandum and provided details of how we responded to those risks in our Audit Completion
Report. The table below outlines the identified significant risks, the work we carried out on those risks and
our conclusions.

Identified significant risk Our response
Our findings and 
conclusions

Management override of controls
In all entities, management at 
various levels within an organisation 
are in a unique position to perpetrate 
fraud because of their ability to 
manipulate accounting records and 
prepare fraudulent financial 
statements by overriding controls 
that otherwise appear to be 
operating effectively. Because of the 
unpredictable way in which such 
override could occur, we consider 
there to be a risk of material 
misstatement due to fraud and thus 
a significant risk on all audits

We addressed this risk through 
performing audit work over:

• Accounting estimates impacting on 
amounts included in the financial 
statements.

• Consideration of identified significant 
transactions outside the normal course 
of business.

• Journals recorded in the general 
ledger and other adjustments made in 
preparation of the financial statements.

Our audit procedures 
did not identify any 
material errors or 
uncertainties in the 
financial statements, 
or other matters that 
we wish to highlight.

Page 22



2. AUDIT OF THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

Executive summary
Audit of the 

financial 
statements

Value for 
money 

conclusion

Other reporting 
responsibilities Our fees Forward look

6

Our response to significant audit risks (continued)

Identified significant risk Our response Our findings and conclusions

Valuation of Property, Plant and 
Equipment, Investment 
Properties and Assets Held For 
Sale

The Council’s accounts contain 
material balances and disclosures 
relating to its holding of Property, 
Plant and Equipment, Investment 
Properties and Assets Held for 
Sale, with the majority of land and 
building assets required to be 
carried at valuation. Due to high 
degree of estimation uncertainty 
associated with those held at 
valuation, we determined there is a 
significant risk in this area. 

The risk increased as a result of 
any potential economic downturn 
arising from COVID-19. The Royal 
Institute of Chartered Surveyors 
(RICS) has also issued a Valuation 
Practice Alert (VPA), which 
highlights the use of material 
uncertainty declarations in their 
valuation reports.

We performed a range of audit 
tests, including, but not limited to:

• Assessing the Council’s valuers 
scope of work, qualifications, 
objectivity and independence to 
carry out the required 
programme of revaluations.

• Considering whether the overall 
revaluation methodology used 
by the Council’s valuer is in line 
with industry practice, the CIPFA 
Code of Practice and the 
Council’s accounting policies.

• Assessing whether valuation 
movements are in line with 
market expectations by 
reference to alternative sources 
of valuation data to provide 
information on regional valuation 
trends.

• Assessing the treatment of the 
upward and downward 
revaluations in the Council’s 
financial statements with regards 
to the requirements of the CIPFA 
Code of Practice.

• Assessing the approach that the 
Council adopts to ensure that 
assets not subject to revaluation 
in 2019/20 are materially correct, 
including considering the 
robustness of that approach in 
light of the valuation information 
reported by the Council’s valuer.

We also considered the potential 
impact of the COVID-19 pandemic 
on the Council’s asset valuations 
and the adequacy of the 
disclosures in the financial 
statements, specifically those 
relating to the material uncertainty 
applied by your valuer to their 
valuations.

The Council’s valuer declared 
that the valuation of the 
Council’s property assets were 
subject to ‘material valuation 
uncertainty’ as a result of 
COVID-19 and this was 
disclosed in Note 4 of the 
financial statements and referred 
to in the ‘emphasis of matter’ 
paragraph in our auditor’s report.

A ‘material valuation uncertainty’ 
declaration does not mean that 
the valuation cannot be relied 
upon, only that, because of the 
extraordinary circumstances 
arising from COVID-19, less 
certainty can be attached to the 
valuation.

Page 23



2. AUDIT OF THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

Executive summary
Audit of the 

financial 
statements

Value for 
money 

conclusion

Other reporting 
responsibilities Our fees Forward look

7

Our response to significant audit risks (continued)

Identified significant risk Our response Our findings and conclusions

Valuation of the Net Pension 
Liability

The Council’s accounts contain 
material liabilities relating to the local 
government pension scheme. The 
Council uses an actuary to provide an 
annual valuation of these liabilities in 
line with the requirements of IAS19 
Employee Benefits. Due to the high 
degree of estimation uncertainty 
associated with this valuation, we 
determined there to be a significant 
audit risk in this area.

We performed a range of audit 
tests, including, but not limited 
to:

• Assessing the competency, 
objectivity and independence 
of the Lincolnshire Pension 
Fund’s Actuary, Hymans 
Robertson LLP.

• Liaising with the auditor of the 
Lincolnshire Pension Fund to 
gain assurance that the 
controls in place at the 
Pension Fund are operating 
effectively.

• Reviewing the 
appropriateness of the 
Pension Asset and Liability 
valuation methodologies 
applied by the Pension Fund 
Actuary, and the key 
assumptions included within 
the valuation.

• Agreeing the data in the IAS 
19 valuation report provided 
by the Fund Actuary for 
accounting purposes to the 
pension accounting entries 
and disclosures in the 
Council’s financial 
statements.

• Considering the impact of the 
remedy solution for the 
McCloud legal judgement on 
the net pension liability.

‘Material valuation uncertainty’ 
was disclosed on the Pension 
Fund’s property investment 
assets as a result of COVID-19. 
As the Council’s share of those 
assets in the net Pension 
Liability in its own balance sheet 
is material, the Council has 
disclosed this in Note 4 of the 
financial statements and we 
have reflected this in the 
‘emphasis of matter’ paragraph 
in our Audit Report. 

Page 24



2. AUDIT OF THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

Executive summary
Audit of the 

financial 
statements

Value for 
money 

conclusion

Other reporting 
responsibilities Our fees Forward look

8

Internal control recommendations
As part of our audit we considered the internal controls in place that are relevant to the preparation of the
financial statements. We did this to design audit procedures that allow us to express our opinion on the
financial statements, but this did not extend to us expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of internal
controls. We identified the following deficiencies in internal control as part of our audit.

Description of 
deficiency

Expected credit loss model

Our review of the Council’s debt impairment calculations confirmed that 
these were not in accordance with its stated accounting policy which 
establishes the use of the expected credit loss model as required under 
IFRS 9 and the CIPFA Code.

Potential effects The Council is failing to comply with the requirements of current 
accounting standards and the CIPFA Code. This may lead to the
incorrect debt impairment figure being calculated and disclosed within the 
financial statements.

Recommendation The Council should review its approach to the calculation of its debt 
impairment to ensure that this accords with the requirements of IFRS 9 
and the CIPFA Code.

Management 
response

We acknowledge the deficiency and will ensure that the correct 
methodology is adopted next year.

Description of 
deficiency

Maintenance of property asset information

Our testing of the Council’s property assets has confirmed that it has not 
maintained an accurate database of its portfolio of assets, specifically the 
floor areas of buildings. As the floor areas of buildings are utilised by the 
valuer in some of their valuations it is essential that such records are 
maintained to ensure accurate valuations are undertaken and reported at 
each year end.

Potential effects The Council’s property valuations may be materially misstated within the 
financial statements as a result of inaccurate floor areas being used in 
valuations.

Recommendation The Council should ensure that complete and accurate records are 
maintained in respect of its property assets to ensure appropriate 
valuations are able to be undertaken.

Management 
response

The recommendation is noted and agreed. Floor areas of buildings will be 
recorded and maintained for future asset valuations.

Page 25



2. AUDIT OF THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

Executive summary
Audit of the 

financial 
statements

Value for 
money 

conclusion

Other reporting 
responsibilities Our fees Forward look

9

Internal control recommendations (continued)

Description of 
deficiency

Loan confirmations

Our testing of the Council’s loans balances has confirmed that it does not 
have relevant contact details for the provider of one of its loans. As these 
details are required to effectively monitor and control the Council’s liability 
it is essential that such details are obtained and maintained over the 
lifetime of its obligation. 

Potential effects The Council’s may not be able to effectively service its contractual 
obligations in respect of it loans balances.

Recommendation The Council should ensure that complete and accurate records are 
maintained in respect of its loans balances to ensure appropriate 
communications and debt servicing are able to be undertaken.

Management 
response

The loan balance is long standing (20 years) with confirmations previously 
having been received annually.

The recommendation is noted and agreed. Once future communication 
occurs we will record and maintain contact details.

Page 26



3. VALUE FOR MONEY CONCLUSION

Executive summary
Audit of the 

financial 
statements

Value for 
money 

conclusion

Other reporting 
responsibilities Our fees Forward look

10

Value for money conclusion Unqualified

Our audit approach

We are required to consider whether the Council has made proper arrangements for securing economy,
efficiency and effectiveness in its use of resources. The NAO issues guidance to auditors that underpins the
work we are required to carry out in order to form our conclusion, and sets out the criterion and sub-criteria
that we are required to consider.

The overall criterion is that, ‘in all significant respects, the Council had proper arrangements to ensure it took
properly informed decisions and deployed resources to achieve planned and sustainable outcomes for
taxpayers and local people.’ To assist auditors in reaching a conclusion on this overall criterion, the following
sub-criteria are set out by the NAO:

• informed decision making;

• sustainable resource deployment; and

• working with partners and other third parties.

Significant audit risks

The NAO’s guidance requires us to carry out work to identify whether or not a risk to our conclusion exists.
Risk, in the context of our work, is the risk that we come to an incorrect conclusion rather than the risk of the
arrangements in place at the Council being inadequate.

When we perform our work, we consider whether there are any areas requiring additional audit attention as a
“Significant Audit Risk”, which we report to the Audit Committee prior to finalising our conclusion. For
2019/20, we did not identify any significant audit risks.

Overall Conclusion

Our auditor’s report stated that that, in all significant respects, the Council put in place proper arrangements
to secure economy, efficiency and effectiveness in its use of resources for the year ended 31st March 2020.

Page 27



4. OTHER REPORTING RESPONSIBILITIES

Executive summary
Audit of the 

financial 
statements

Value for 
money 

conclusion

Other reporting 
responsibilities Our fees Forward look

11

Exercise of statutory reporting powers No matters to report

Completion of group audit reporting requirements Below testing threshold

Other information published alongside the audited financial 
statements

Consistent

The Code of Audit Practice and the 2014 Act place wider reporting responsibilities on us, as the Council's
external auditor. We set out below, the context of these reporting responsibilities and our findings for each.

Matters on which we report by exception

The 2014 Act provides us with specific powers where matters come to our attention that, in our judgement,
require reporting action to be taken. We have the power to:

• issue a report in the public interest;

• make statutory recommendations that must be considered and responded to publicly;

• apply to the court for a declaration that an item of account is contrary to law; and

• issue an advisory notice under schedule 8 of the 2014 Act.

We have not exercised any of these statutory reporting powers.

The 2014 Act also gives rights to local electors and other parties, such as the right to ask questions of the
auditor and the right to make an objection to an item of account. We did not receive any such objections or
questions.

Reporting to the NAO in respect of Whole of Government
Accounts consolidation data

The National Audit Office, as group auditor, requires us to complete a Whole of Government Accounts
Assurance Statement in respect of financial consolidation data produced by the Council. We submitted this
information to the NAO on 12 May 2021.

Other information published alongside the financial statements

The Code of Audit Practice requires us to consider whether information published alongside the financial
statements is consistent with those statements and our knowledge and understanding of the Council. In our
opinion, the other information in the Statement of Accounts is consistent with the audited financial
statements.

Page 28



5. OUR FEES

Executive summary
Audit of the 

financial 
statements

Value for money 
conclusion

Other reporting 
responsibilities Our fees Forward look

12

Fees for work as the Council's auditor

We reported our proposed fees for the delivery of our work in the Audit Strategy Memorandum.

Having completed our work for the 2019/20 financial year, we can confirm that our final fees are as follows:

*Fee variations subject to confirmation from PSAA.

Fees for other work

In addition to delivering audit work under the NAO’s Code of Audit Practice, we have been engaged by the
Council to carry out a single piece of assurance work as follows:

Area of work 2019/20 
proposed fee

2019/20 
final fee

Delivery of audit work under the NAO Code of Audit Practice £33,961 £33,961

Fee Variations*:
• Additional testing on Property, Plant & Equipment and Defined 

Benefit Pensions Schemes
• Additional costs associated with 2019/20, including, but not limited 

to:
• Impact of ‘Material Valuation Uncertainty’ on the Council’s 

land and buildings and its share of Pension Fund property 
assets.

• Updating audit risk assessments, including the value for 
money conclusion.

• Additional considerations of estimation uncertainty in going 
concern.

• Changes impacting pension liabilities through the McCloud 
and Goodwin legal cases.

£6,194

£5,032

Final audit fee £45,187

Area of work 2019/20 
proposed fee

2019/20 
final fee

Assurance:
• Certification of Housing Benefit Subsidy Claim £6,800 £6,800

Page 29



13

Executive summary
Audit of the 

financial 
statements

Value for money 
conclusion

Other reporting 
responsibilities Our fees Forward look

13

6. FORWARD LOOK: AUDIT CHANGES 2020/21

Changes to the Code of Audit Practice

The Code of Audit Practice (the Audit Code), issued by the Comptroller and Auditor General, prescribes the
way we carry out our responsibilities as your auditors. On 1st April 2020 a new Code came in to force and will
apply to our work from 2020/21 onwards.

The new Audit Code continues to apply the requirements of International Standards on Auditing (ISAs) to our
audit of the financial statements. While there are changes to the ISAs that are effective from 2020/21 the Audit
Code has not introduced any changes to the scope of our audit of the financial statements. We will continue to
give our opinion on the financial statements in our independent auditor’s report.

There are however significant changes to the work on value for money arrangements, and the way we report
the outcomes of our work to you.

The auditor’s work on value for money arrangements

From 2020/21 we are still required to satisfy ourselves that you have made proper arrangements for securing
the economy, efficiency and effectiveness in your use of resources, however unlike under the 2015 Audit
Code, we will no longer report in the form of a conclusion on arrangements. Instead, where our work identifies
significant weaknesses in arrangements, we are required to report those weaknesses to you, along with the
actions that need to be taken to address those weaknesses.

Our work will focus on three criteria specified in the revised Audit Code:

• Financial sustainability: how the body plans and managers its resources to ensure it can continue to
deliver its services;

• Governance: how the body ensures that it makes informed decisions and properly manages its risks;
and

• Improving economy, efficiency and effectiveness: how the body uses information about its costs and
performance to improve the way it manages and delivers its services.

Under the new Audit Code, we will be expected to report and make recommendations as soon as we identify
a significant weakness in arrangements, as opposed to reporting our conclusion on arrangements at the end
of the audit cycle as has previously been the case.

Reporting the results of the auditor’s work

We currently issue you with an Annual Audit Letter which provides a summary of our work across all aspects
of our audit. From 2020/21 the Annual Audit Letter will be replaced by the Auditor’s Annual Report. This will
continue to provide a summary of our work over the year of audit but will also include a detailed commentary
on your arrangements in place to achieve economy, efficiency and effectiveness. This commentary replaces
the conclusion on arrangements that was previously provided and will include details of any significant
weakness identified and reported to you, follow up of any previous recommendations made, and our view as
to whether recommendations have been implemented satisfactorily.

The new Audit Code will result in additional officer time and auditor time and therefore audit fees.

Page 30



14

Executive summary
Audit of the 

financial 
statements

Value for money 
conclusion

Other reporting 
responsibilities Our fees Forward look

14

6. FORWARD LOOK: AUDIT CHANGES 2020/21

Redmond Review

In September 2020, Sir Tony Redmond published the findings of his independent review into the oversight of
local audit and the transparency of local authority financial reporting. The report makes several
recommendations that, if implemented, could affect both the financial statements that local authorities are
required to prepare and the work that we as auditors are required to do.

The report and recommendations are wide-ranging, and includes:

• the creation of the Office of Local Audit and Regulation (OLAR), to manage, oversee and regulate
local audit;

• reviewing reporting deadlines;

• reviewing governance arrangements in local authorities, including the membership of the Audit
Committee; and

• increasing transparency and reducing the complexity of local authority financial statements.

The recommendations and findings have been considered by the Ministry of Housing, Communities and Local
Government and we look forward to working with all stakeholders to implement changes to ensure the
development and sustainability of local audit.

The full report is available here: https://www.gov.uk/government/publications/local-authority-financial-
reporting-and-external-audit-independent-review

Page 31



Mazars is an internationally integrated partnership, 
specialising in audit, accountancy, advisory, tax and legal 

services*. Operating in over 90 countries and territories 
around the world, we draw on the expertise of 40,400 

professionals – 24,400 in Mazars’ integrated partnership 
and 16,000 via the Mazars North America Alliance –

to assist clients of all sizes at every stage in their 
development.

*where permitted under applicable country laws 

The contents of this document are confidential and not for 
distribution to anyone other than the recipients. Disclosure 

to third parties cannot be made without the prior written 
consent of Mazars LLP

© Mazars 2020

www.mazars.com

Mark Surridge

Director

Mobile: 07875 974291

Email: mark.surridge@mazars.co.uk

Jon Machej

Manager

Mobile: 07766 540252

Email: jon.machej@mazars.co.uk

CONTACT

Page 32



Internal Audit
Progress Report

For all your assurance needs

Boston Borough Council
May 2021

Page 33

Agenda Item 3



This report has been prepared solely for the use of Members and Management of Boston Borough Council. Details may be made 
available to specified external organisations, including external auditors, but otherwise the report should not be used or referred to in 
whole or in part without prior consent.  No responsibility to any third party is accepted as the report has not been prepared, and is 
not intended for any other purpose.

The matters raised in this report are only those that came to our attention during the course of our work – there may be 
weaknesses in governance, risk management and the system of internal control that we are not aware of because they did not form 
part of our work programme, were excluded from the scope of individual audit engagements or were not bought to our attention.
The opinion is based solely the work undertaken as part of the agreed internal audit plan.

Contents

John Scott - Audit Manager  (Head of Internal Audit)
john.scott@lincoln.gov.uk

Paul Berry – Principal Auditor
paul.berry@lincoln.gov.uk

Page 2Key Messages
Introduction
Summary
Assurances

Page 2Internal Audit work completed
Overview of Assurances
Audit Reports at Draft
Work in Progress

Page 9Appendices
1 Limited / Low Assurance Reports
2 Assurance Definitions
3 Audit Recommendations
4 2021/22 Audit Plan to Date

1

Page 7

Page 6

Page 34



Introduction
The purpose of this report is to:

• Provide details of the audit work during the period March to May
• Advise on progress with the 2020/21 plan and the 2021/22 Plan
• Raise any other matters that may be relevant to the Audit Committee role

2

3
SUBSTANTIAL 
ASSURANCE

Key Messages
As at 31st March 97% of the revised 20/21 Audit Plan had 
been completed. Two audits were at draft report stage and 
since then one has been finalised and the other is being 
agreed with management. 

The 21/22 Audit Plan will start mid to late May, and is shown 
at the end of this report.

Assurances / Consultancy
In this period five assurance reviews have been completed;

• Council Tax – Substantial
• IT Assurance Map update – Limited
• Housing Benefit & Council Tax Support – Substantial
• Accountancy Key Controls – High
• Payroll – Substantial

Note: The assurance expressed is at the time of issue of the 
report but before the full implementation of the agreed 
management action plan.  The definitions for each level are 
shown in Appendix 1. 

1
HIGH 

ASSURANCE

1
LIMITED 

ASSURANCE

0
LOW 

ASSURANCE

0
CONSULTANCY

Page 35



3

High Assurance

Accountancy 
Key Controls

This was a key controls audit which found that the expected key 
controls are in place and operating as intended;

• Access to the EFinancial system is restricted, relevant to job roles 
and up to date

• There have been no virements in 2020/21 but staff are aware of 
authorisation requirements

• The annual budget is accurately loaded and checked
• Revenue expenditure is regularly monitored by the accountants, 

budget holders, Assistant Directors and Portfolio Holders and 
reported to Cabinet as part of a quarterly Finance update

• Capital expenditure is monitored through Alliance Capital 
Monitoring meetings and reported to Cabinet as part of a quarterly 
Finance update

• Budget variances are identified, explained and reported as part of 
the quarterly Finance update, in accordance with Financial 
Procedure Rules

• Data posted into the nominal ledger from other systems is 
reconciled monthly

• Suspense accounts are continually monitored and reconciled 
monthly

No areas for improvement were identified and no recommendations 
have been made.

Page 36



4

Substantial Assurance

Council Tax

All payment methods continue to operate with appropriate controls in 
place and any refunds due are checked and authorised.

Debt recovery has been significantly affected by the various lockdowns. 
In accordance with Government requirements all recovery action was 
suspended for the period March to August 2020 and although reminders 
restarted in September there were no court sessions in 2020 and formal 
action will not now take place until the early part of 2021. The latest 
collection data (for Q3) shows that collection of Council Tax is behind 
target (78.26% against a target of 80.56%) but it is hoped that this gap 
will be reduced by the year end. 

Some minor improvements in the debt recovery process have been 
agreed relating to a review of circumstance codes to ensure they are 
appropriate, and write-off authorisation emails containing the number 
and value of debts being authorised for write-off

A daily process to reconcile Council Tax Support posted from Housing 
Benefits into Council Tax has not been undertaken consistently and 
management oversight is required to ensure that it is completed. As the 
same issue was found in the previous audit in 2018 a High priority 
recommendation has been made, which will be subject to an audit follow 
up review when it is implemented.

A high level review of Discounts and Exemptions indicates that they are 
being correctly awarded. A Single Person Discount review planned for 
2020 has been postponed to 2021. 

Page 37



5

Substantial Assurance

Housing 
Benefit & 
Council 
Tax 
Support

HB and CTS processing times for new claims and change of circumstances 
are monitored and reported quarterly to senior management and Members, 
and the targets are being met

Large value payments are reviewed in detail and weekly payment runs are 
authorised by the manager. However warnings in the weekly payment run 
should being reviewed. This will be done going forwards. 

A reconciliation of data in the HB system to what is posted into the Creditor 
and Financial Ledger systems is undertaken. However there are some 
variances which have not been flagged up for investigation. This will be 
done going forwards.

A process is in place to review any returned letters, which may be an 
indication that the claimant is no longer at the address.

Awards of Council Tax Support Hardship Funding payments are being made 
in accordance with Government guidance. As at mid-February £400,000 of 
the £538,000 received has been spent and management are considering the 
options available for the amount remaining.

Suspected HB fraud is being reported to the DWP’s Single Fraud 
Investigation Service in accordance with guidance. Suspected CTS fraud is 
not handled by SFIS and is dealt with internally. Due to a lack of resource 
investigation action is not an option but it is dealt with by removing discounts 
and a penalty can be imposed. 

The level of Quality Control work in 2020/21 is significantly below the level 
required due to additional work as a result of Covid. In 2019/20 the required 
level (5%) of QC work was undertaken across the whole year and the 
accuracy target of 80% was achieved. A recommendation has not been 
made as the move to PSPS on 1st April should address the resource issue.

Action is being taken to recover overpaid Housing Benefit and Council Tax 
Support, however the level of resource to do this has been impacted due to 
additional work as a result of Covid. The level is decreasing slightly; in April 
18 it was £3m, in April 20 it was £2.7m and in March 21 it was £2.4m.

Page 38



6

Substantial Assurance

Payroll

Processes to collect and authorise the payroll data required each month have 
not changed significantly as a result of Covid / Working From Home. Some 
data is input directly into iTrent by the employee and authorised by their 
manager, or a paper document is completed, scanned and emailed by the 
manager.

Following the Alliance with ELDC (in July 2020) there are some authorisation 
matters that need to be addressed;

• ELDC line managers cannot yet access BBC’s iTrent system to authorise 
documents. As a work around the People Services Officer (PSO) is 
authorising on iTrent on their behalf upon receipt of an authorising email. 
This arrangement, which has been signed off by management, started in 
August 20 and will continue until October when a permanent, secure, 
solution will be put in place – a new payroll and HR system has been 
commissioned as part of the transfer of HR and ICT services to PSPS. 

• An up to date authorised Signatory list (setting out who can authorise what 
– covering all areas and not just payroll) has not yet been produced. We 
have been advised that this is scheduled to be done in early 2021/22.

Whilst recognising the above matters are to be resolved, we are happy that 
payroll documentation is being authorised by officers at an appropriate level.

Robust processes are in place, involving the PSO and the People Services 
Manager, to check that payroll data and payments are correct. 

Since December 20 a small number of staff have been furloughed and 
monthly claims have been made to the Government under the Job Retention 
Scheme. The guidance associated with the Scheme is being complied with 
and a check is in place to ensure that amounts claimed are received. 

A review of a small sample of termination / redundancy payments found that 
they were in accordance with Council policies and had been appropriately 
authorised.

A secure process is in place for staff to change their bank account details.

Page 39



7

Limited Assurance

IT 
Assurance
Map

We undertook ICT Assurance mapping work during 19/20 based on the 
ISO 27001 and other linked standards.  It reviewed first, second and third 
line assurances. The review identified several areas of mitigation which 
were work in progress, particularly around policy and procedures. Due to 
Covid and work linked to the new Alliance much of the action plan has not 
yet been progressed.

For 20/21 we reviewed further elements of ICT security best practice  with 
the assistance of a specialist ICT Auditor;

• Progress with the March 2020 ICT action plan
• Progress and compliance with IT security policies, standards and good 

practice
• Progress with ICT risk management

The scope did not include substantive or evidence-based testing; some 
evidence was obtained for certain areas.

The audit made 4 High priority and 9 Medium priority recommendations.

There are still further actions to be completed, particularly around the 
development of IT security policy and procedures. The IT team at Boston 
will join with PSPS, and consequently, over time, will adopt their IT 
governance arrangements. We have been advised that PSPS and the 
PSPS team will address and monitor the agreed actions and provide 
updates to management (through the Assistant Director – Organisation 
and Corporate Services who oversees the PSPS ICT SLA) and the Audit 
and Governance Committee during 21-22 as part of their implementation 
plan.

Further details can be found in Appendix 1.

Page 40



Internal Audit Work

5

Audit Reports at Draft Stage
• Governance, Risk Management & Counter Fraud (20/21 audit)

Work in Progress
There is currently no work in progress.

Other Significant work
None is currently being undertaken.

Audit Recommendations
A recommendation update giving the position as at 31st March is attached at Appendix 
3.

Page 41



Benchmarking
Internal Audit's performance is measured against a range of indicators.  

The statistics below show our performance on key indicators year to 
date. 

Performance on Key Indicators (2020/21)

100%
Rated our 

service Good 
to Excellent

6

Achievement 
of Audit KPI’s 

to date

97%

100%
100%

100%
100%

100%

100% 100%

Plan Span Draft
Issue

Final
Issue

2020/21 Target to date

97% Plan 
Completed at 

31st March

Page 42



Other matters of interest
A summary of matters that will be of particular interest to Audit 
committee members 

7

There are none at this time.

Page 43



Appendix 1 Audits with Limited or Low Assurance

9

IT SECURITY FOLLOW UP – LIMITED ASSURANCE

ISSUED March 2021

Background and Context
An ICT Strategy was agreed in 19/20 and the management of the ICT service was 
reviewed with the appointment of a new IT and Transformation Manager. At the end of 
19/20 Officers were also in the process of developing a new ICT Security Policy.

We undertook ICT Assurance mapping work during 19/20 based on the ISO 27001 
and other linked standards.  It reviewed first, second and third line assurances. 

The review identified several areas of mitigation which were work in progress, 
particularly around policy and procedures.

Due to Covid and work linked to the new Alliance much of the action plan has not yet 
been progressed.

For 20-21 we reviewed further elements of ICT security best practice which focused 
on specific areas.

We undertook this review with a specialist ICT Auditor

Scope
The purpose of the review is to provide assurance on IT security controls linked to 
linked IT security standards, identifying where mitigation work is in progress and also 
any additional recommendations that may arise. 

We reviewed

• Progress with the March 2020 ICT action plan

• Progress and compliance with IT security policies, standards and good practice

• Progress with ICT risk management

The scope of the audit was through analysis and discussion of an IT benchmarking 
questionnaire. The scope did not include substantive or evidence-based testing; some 
evidence was obtained for certain areas.

Page 44



12

Executive Summary
There are still further actions to be completed, particularly around the development of 
IT security policy and procedures. The IT team at Boston will join with PSPS, and 
consequently, over time, will adopt their IT governance arrangements. We have been 
advised that PSPS and the PSPS team will address and monitor the agreed actions 
and provide updates to management (through the Assistant Director – Organisation 
and Corporate Services who oversees the PSPS ICT SLA) and the Audit and 
Governance Committee during 21-22 as part of their implementation plan.

Key findings include: 

• Network documentation and policies will be reviewed as part of ongoing 
improvement planning. This includes the new IT Security policy, security incident 
response plan and other guidance standards and procedures

• Media/asset disposal standards are to be documented as are configuration 
management standards and Web based / Cloud acquisition standards 

• Formalising the IT change management process
• Officers are working to towards PSN (Public Services Network) 

compliance/accreditation. 
• Patch management records will be improved. 
• IT out of hours support arrangements may need formalising.
• Access to generic accounts and alerts for changes to privileged groups
• The use and control around USB devices will be reviewed
• Introducing scheduled test recovery from backups and for the IT DR site.  Back up 

procedures are also to be documented. The IT Disaster Recovery plan is reviewed 
and updated.

• Although a new project methodology has been agreed for the Alliance for 2021/22, 
when IT moves to PSPS then they will use their methodology.

• Server room environmental additional control alerts to be introduced
• IT Security training and awareness is part of induction. An ongoing programme of 

cyber awareness refresher training should be introduced.
• Whilst there is some reference to IT risk within the strategic risk register we 

recommend adding cyber-security risk.

Page 45



13

Management Response
This is an excellent overview of where we are, to share with PSPS as they take over 
responsibility for these areas. PSPS are currently putting together a plan for 
implementation of the new arrangements from 1st April 2021. Anything that can be 
implemented immediately has been flagged in the actions. Otherwise, the action will 
be incorporated into their implementation plan with an end date of 31st March 2022. 
Priority actions will likely happen before this date but this will be clarified in the  
implementation plan itself. The outcomes of the NCSC work will also feature in that 
action plan.
Provided by the IT and Transformation Manager

This is a helpful overview of where Boston Borough Council was at the point that ICT 
services transferred to PSPS on April 1, 2021.  The report further supports the 
Council’s justification to transfer ICT Services to PSPS and the PSPS team are now 
working to implement the recommendations, with progress having already been made 
in a number of the areas identified.
Provided by the Assistant Director – Organisation and Corporate Services

Page 46



Appendix 2 Assurance Definitions

10

High
Our critical review or assessment on the activity gives us a high level 
of confidence on service delivery arrangements, management of 
risks, and the operation of controls and / or performance.  

The risk of the activity not achieving its objectives or outcomes is low.  
Controls have been evaluated as adequate, appropriate and are 
operating effectively.

Substantial
Our critical review or assessment on the activity gives us a 
substantial level of confidence (assurance) on service delivery 
arrangements, management of risks, and operation of controls and / 
or performance.

There are some improvements needed in the application of controls 
to manage risks. However, the controls have been evaluated as 
adequate, appropriate and operating sufficiently so that the risk of the 
activity not achieving its objectives is medium to low.  

Limited Our critical review or assessment on the activity gives us a a limited 
level of confidence on service delivery arrangements, management 
of risks, and operation of controls and / or performance.

The controls to manage the key risks were found not always to be 
operating or are inadequate. Therefore, the controls evaluated are 
unlikely to give a reasonable level of confidence (assurance) that the 
risks are being managed effectively.  It is unlikely that the activity will 
achieve its objectives.

Low

Our critical review or assessment on the activity identified significant 
concerns on service delivery arrangements, management of risks, 
and operation of controls and / or performance.

There are either gaps in the control framework managing the key 
risks or the controls have been evaluated as not adequate, 
appropriate or are not being effectively operated. Therefore the risk 
of the activity not achieving its objectives is high.

Page 47



15

Appendix 3 Audit Recommendations

Audit Recommendation Status at 31st March 2021.
Activity Issue 

Date
Assurance Total 

recs
Recs 
Imp

Priority of Overdue 
Recommendations

Recs 
not 
due

High Medium Low
Economic 
Development

Mar 19 Substantial 3 2 0 1 0

The outstanding recommendation is for Cabinet to receive the ED Action Plan as 
a supporting document to the Corporate Plan. 
The target date has been extended to March 2021 (original date was Sept 19) -
this action was initially delayed due to the delay in producing the new Corporate 
Plan. An update is awaited but it is likely to be further extended so that it can 
include Covid Recovery work as well.

IT Infrastructure 
Follow Up

Apr 19 Substantial 3 2 0 1 0

The outstanding recommendation is to finalise the Code of Connection. The 
target date has been further extended to Sept 21 (original date was April 19) and 
is part of the Boston ICT roadmap. This action transferred to PSPS on 1 April 21.

Complaints May 19 Substantial 10 6 0 4 0

The outstanding recommendations are to review some requirements of the policy 
to see if they are still relevant and to produce an annual complaints report.
The target dates have been further extended from Dec 20 to Dec 21 (original 
dates were March 20) due to a review of the complaints process across the 
strategic alliance in 21/22 to develop a single approach.

Website / 
Digitalisation

May 19 Substantial 5 3 2 0 0

We have been advised that the 2 High priority recs are no longer required as a 
new website is planned as part of the Strategic Alliance (they relate to completing 
an Equality Analysis and compliance with the Website Accessibility regulations).

Health & Safety Oct 19 Substantial 5 4 0 1 0 0

The outstanding recommendation is to provide H&S training for members. Work  
started was delayed due to Covid and now requires a collaborative approach with 
ELDC. The target date has been extended to June 2021 (was originally March 
2020).

Medium Term 
Financial 
Strategy

Oct 19 High 2 0 0 1 0 1

An update on the recommendation due March 2021 is awaited. The other one is 
not due until March 2022.

Page 48



16

Activity Issue 
Date

Assurance Total 
recs

Recs 
Imp

Priority of Overdue 
Recommendations

Recs 
not 
due

High Medium Low

Scrutiny Dec 19 Substantial 4 3 0 1 0 0

The outstanding recommendation is to produce a schedule of policies. We have 
been advised that is no longer required for BBC alone and will be an action for 
the Alliance as part of bringing services together.

Values & 
Behaviours

Feb 20 Consultancy 2 0 0 2 0 0

The outstanding recommendations are regarding the Code of Conduct (update 
and officer / member training). The target dates have been further extended to 
June 2021 (originally Sept 2020).

Treasury 
Management 
Key Controls

Feb 20 Substantial 2 1 0 1 0 0

The outstanding recommendation is to update the Treasury Management 
Practices. The target date has been further extended to Sept 21 (original was 
March 20) due to the move to PSPS and the need to align it across the Strategic 
Alliance.

HMO Licensing Jun 20 Substantial 4 3 0 0 0 1

1 recommendation due April 21.

Governance, 
Risk, Counter 
Fraud

Jul 20 Substantial 2 1 1 0 0 0

The outstanding recommendation (High priority) is to complete the Publication 
Scheme and the target date has been further extended to June 2021 (originally 
Sept 2020) as it being picked up as part of the Annual Governance Statement 
process.

Strategic 
Alliance – TOR / 
MOU

Dec 20 Consultancy 8 0 0 4 0 4

An update on the recommendations overdue is awaited.

Page 49



17

Activity Issue 
Date

Assurance Total 
recs

Recs 
Imp

Priority of Overdue 
Recommendations

Recs 
not 
due

High Medium Low

Council Tax Mar 21 Substantial 3 1 1 1

The outstanding (High) recommendation is regarding the process to reconcile 
Council Tax Support received from the HB system. It has been partly 
implemented and the remaining aspects have been started but have been 
extended to June 21 ( original date was Mar 21).

IT Assurance 
Map update

Mar 21 Limited 13 13

Housing Benefit 
& Council Tax 
Support

Apr 21 Substantial 2 2

Both recommendations were implemented by the target date.

Payroll May 21 Substantial 2 2

Governance, 
Risk 
Management & 
Counter Fraud

Substantial 3 3

Page 50



Appendix 4 2021/22 Audit Plan Progress

12

Audit Scope of Work Start 
Planned 
date

Start 
Actual 
date

End 
Actual 
date

Status/ Rating

Brexit Management of Brexit risks
(joint with ELDC)

Q1

Towns Fund & 
PE21

Programme & project 
management 
arrangements.
(joint with ELDC)

Q1

Value for Money 
(MTFS)

Support work for External 
Audit’s annual commentary 
in line with the new code of 
practice and the CIPFA 
Financial Code.
(joint with ELDC)

Q1

Income Income collection controls 
in key areas.

Q2

Workforce Plan The Plan is effective and 
meets the changing needs 
of the Council and the 
demographics and skills of 
staff.
(joint with ELDC)

Q2

Flood 
Management

Adequate arrangements to 
prevent and respond to 
flooding are in place 
between the Council and 
the LLFA.
(joint with ELDC)

Q2

Key Controls Testing on the Council’s 
financial control 
environment to inform the 
Annual IA Report.
(coverage may change)

Q3-4

Page 51



13

Audit Scope of Work Start 
Planned 
date

Start 
Actual 
date

End 
Actual 
date

Status/ 
Rating

ICT – IT Security 
Follow Up

Follow up of a previous audit. Q3

Combined 
Assurance

Updating the Council’s 
assurance map and producing 
the Combined Assurance report.

Q3

Strategic Alliance Governance arrangements
(joint with ELDC)

Q3

Carbon Reduction Plans to tackle climate change 
are relevant, fit for purpose and 
achievable.
(joint with ELDC)

Q4

ICT – ICT Projects Appropriate programme and 
project management 
arrangements are in place.

Q4

Contract 
Management

All contracts are recorded, 
allocated and effectively 
managed.
(joint with ELDC)

Q4

Page 52



 

 

 

 

 
 

REPORT TO: AUDIT & GOVERNANCE COMMITTEE 

DATE: 24TH MAY 2021 

SUBJECT: RISK REPORT QUARTER 3 2020/2021 

KEY DECISION: N/A 

REPORT AUTHOR: 

WARD(S) AFFECTED: 

SUZANNE ROLFE, TRANSFORMATION MANAGER 

ALL WARDS 

EXEMPT REPORT? NO 

 

SUMMARY 

Update on risks as at the end of Quarter 3 of 2020/2021 (April to December 2020) to provide 

assurance to the Committee that corporate governance arrangements are in place and 

functioning effectively. 

 

RECOMMENDATIONS 

That Committee note the report and raise any comments they may have. 

 

REASONS FOR RECOMMENDATIONS 

The Audit & Governance Committee is responsible for monitoring the effective development 

and operation of risk management in the Council according to its terms of reference 

 

OTHER OPTIONS CONSIDERED 

Alternative reporting arrangements 

 

  

Page 53

Agenda Item 4



REPORT 

1. Update on risks in Quarter 3 

1.1 Each quarter we monitor our strategic risks – those risks which could impact most on the 

achievement of our corporate priorities as set out in the Corporate Plan in place in April 

2020 – Prosperity; People; Place; Public Service. 

1.2 The strategic risks were reviewed by CMT in Q1, particularly with regard to the impact of 

Covid-19 and the Strategic Alliance with East Lindsey District Council. They have also been 

reviewed in Q2 in light of the change in management structure and will be reviewed in light 

of the new Corporate Plan in Q4. 

1.3 Summary of strategic risks (full details in Appendix A) 

Corporate 
Priority 

Risk name Risk owner 
Risk 

score 
Risk 

rating 
Management 

assurance (RAG) 

1: Prosperity 
Flood risk 

Mike 
Gildersleeves 

8 Medium Amber 

Growth and local 
economy 

Lydia Rusling 9 Medium Green 

2: People 

Housing 
Michelle 
Howard 

12 High Red 

Welfare Phil Perry 4 Medium Green 

Health 
Michelle 
Howard 

6 Medium Green 

3: Place Town Centre Lydia Rusling 6 Medium Green 

4: Public 
Service 

Population change 
Michelle 
Howard 

6 Medium Green 

Budget Adrian Sibley 12 High Amber 

Capacity James Gilbert 6 Medium Green 

Transformation 
Programme 

Adrian Sibley 6 Medium Amber 

Brexit Rob Barlow 9 Medium Green 

Overall 

Civil contingency 
risks 

Christian Allen 8 Medium Green 

Compliance James Gilbert 6 Medium Green 

Reputation James Gilbert 6 Medium Green 

Strategic Alliance Rob Barlow 8 Medium Amber 
 

1.4 The two high strategic risks in Q3 remain housing and budget. There has been no change to 

the strategic risk scores in Q3. 

 

2. Future plans 

2.1 For 2021/22, we will be working towards having a single risk management approach across 

the Alliance, with strategic and operational risks reviewed as part of service planning. 

 

  

Page 54



CONCLUSION 
 
Strategic and operational risks continue to be managed in accordance with the Risk Management 

Framework. 

 

FINANCIAL IMPLICATIONS 
 
There are no financial implications specific to this report. 
 

 

LEGAL IMPLICATIONS 

• Local Government Act 1999 

• Accounts and Audit Regulations 2015 

• Delivering Good Governance in Local Government: Framework 2016 

 

CLIMATE CHANGE AND ENVIRONMENTAL IMPLICATIONS 

There are no climate change and environmental implications specific to this report. 

 

EQUALITY AND SAFEGUARDING IMPLICATIONS 

There are no equality and safeguarding implications specific to this report 

 

OTHER IMPLICATIONS  

None 

 

CONSULTATION 

Consultation has been undertaken with CMT. 

 

APPENDICES 

Appendices are listed below and attached to the back of the report: - 

APPENDIX A Audit & Governance Committee Quarter 3 Strategic Risks 

 

BACKGROUND PAPERS 

No background papers as defined in Section 100D of the Local Government Act 1972 were used 

in the production of this report. 

 
Page 55



CHRONOLOGICAL HISTORY OF THIS REPORT 

Name of body Date 

Cabinet 31st March 2021 

 

REPORT APPROVAL  

Report author: Suzanne Rolfe, IT & Transformation Manager 

suzanne.rolfe@boston.gov.uk  

Signed off by: James Gilbert, Assistant Director – Organisation 

and Corporate Services 

james.gilbert@e-lindsey.gov.uk  

Approved for publication: Councillor Noble 

 

Page 56

mailto:suzanne.rolfe@boston.gov.uk
mailto:james.gilbert@e-lindsey.gov.uk


4A AGC Q3 strategic risks

Negative risk Opportunity risk

1 to 4 1 to 4 1 to 16

1.1

Ec
o

n
o

m
ic

C
P

1

Flood risk

The risk of flooding may adversely 

impact on the Council's ability to achieve 

its corporate priority of prosperity

The risk of flooding and the impact this 

may have on investment in the area

The opportunity to establish flood 

defences and address misconceptions
MG NW

Strategic Flood Risk Assessment; 

Lincolnshire Flood Risk Strategy; working 

closely with the Environment Agency; 

Local Plan adopted; plans for the Boston 

Barrier (which will reduce risk of tidal 

flooding from 2% to 0.3%); Lincolnshire 

Resilience Forum

2 Possible 4
Critical 

impact
8

Medium 

risk

Tolerate; continue to work 

with partners to manage 

flood risk and its impact; the 

risk score will only reduce 

when the Boston Barrier 

project is fully completed - 

target 2022

N/A Amber
Business Continuity - 

Averse/Cautious

1.2

Ec
o

n
o

m
ic

C
P

1 Growth and local 

economy

Growth is vital to the future ability of the 

Council to achieve its corporate priority 

of prosperity

The risk of a lack of growth; the risk that 

the local economy stagnates

The opportunity to encourage more 

growth and stimulate the local economy
LR NW

Proactive approach to growth; economic 

development plan; Town's Fund
3 Probable 3

Major 

impact
9

Medium 

risk
Treat

Implementation of 

the Economic 

Development Action 

Plan; Town's Fund

Aim to reduce the 

likelihood of lack of 

growth to possible 

and to take a 

proactive approach 

to growth with the 

ED Plan and actions 

and Town's Fund

Green
Projects & Major 

Change - Hungry

2.1

So
ci

al
 /

 p
eo

p
le

C
P

2

Housing

Future housing availability will have an 

impact on the ability of the Council to 

achieve its corporate priority to support 

and protect vulnerable people; there is a 

negative risk of a lack of housing and an 

opportunity risk to encourage housing 

provision

The lack of housing delivery, across 

tenures, impacting on housing need, the 

economy, business confidence and the 

ability of the Council to achieve its 

corporate priority to support and 

protect vulnerable people and meet the 

wider housing needs of the community

The opportunity to support and 

encourage appropriate housing 

provision

MH MG

Local Plan. Housing Strategy actions. 

Transformation Programme focusing on 

wider housing enabling and housing 

delivery

4
Almost 

certain
3

Major 

impact
12 High risk

Tolerate; continue to work 

with partners to drive the 

delivery of new housing

Monitoring of total 

housing delivery. 

Monitoring of 

affordable housing 

delivery.

N/A Red
Projects & Major 

Change - Hungry

2.2

So
ci

al
 /

 p
eo

p
le

C
P

2

Welfare

There is a risk that 'universal support - 

delivered locally' will impact on the 

ability of the Council to achieve its 

corporate priority to support and 

protect vulnerable people

The risk of 'universal support - delivered 

locally' adversely impacting on 

individuals and communities

The opportunity to assist individuals to 

manage their money better and to 

access employment opportunities

PP JN

'Universal support - delivered locally' 

project work underway with partners to 

ensure support and training is in place 

for staff and local people

2 Possible 2
Minor 

impact
4

Medium 

risk

Tolerate; continue to work 

on the 'universal support - 

delivered locally' project 

with partners

Monitor impact of 

universal credit; this 

will need ongoing 

attention due to the 

protracted nature of 

rollout and potential 

length of time before 

impacts appear

N/A Green
Projects & Major 

Change - Hungry

2.3

So
ci

al
 /

 p
eo

p
le

C
P

2

Health

There is a risk that health issues will 

impact on the ability of the Council to 

achieve its corporate priority to support 

and protect people; long term health 

issues, deprivation, local perceptions, 

apathy, unsustainable health services

The risk of long term health issues, 

deprivation, apathy, unsustainable local 

health services

The opportunity to work with health 

partners to address long term health 

issues and deprivation, to raise 

awareness and promote good health, to 

support the sustainability of local health 

services

MH PS Partnership working with health 3 Probable 2
Minor 

impact
6

Medium 

risk

Tolerate; continue to work 

with partners to deliver the 

Sustainable Health Strategy

Partnership work on 

the Sustainable 

Health Strategy

N/A Green
Projects & Major 

Change - Hungry

3.1

Ec
o

n
o

m
ic

C
P

3

Town centre

	The future sustainability of the Town 

Centre in terms of retail, evening 

economy, housing, heritage, culture, 

leisure, events and car parking will have 

an impact on the ability of the Council to 

achieve its corporate prosperity and 

place priorities.

The risk that the town centre 

deteriorates

	The opportunity to reshape a vibrant 

Town Centre, its economy and to 

develop its visitor economy

LR TA

Corporate Plan priorities; Local Plan & 

Conservation Area Management Plan; 

Heritage Strategy; Economic 

Development Plan; Town's Fund

2 Possible 3
Major 

impact
6

Medium 

risk
Treat

Town's Fund; 

economic 

development 

projects; Covid 

recovery projects

Aim to reduce the 

likelihood of the 

town centre 

deteriorating and to 

take all available 

opportunities to 

reshape a vibrant and 

sustainable town 

centre

Green
Projects & Major 

Change - Hungry

4.1

So
ci

al
 /

 p
eo

p
le

C
P

4

Population change

There is a risk that population change 

will impact on the ability of the Council 

to achieve its corporate priority of public 

service

The risk of poor community relations 

and an inability to adapt to change; local 

perceptions

The opportunity to support and 

encourage good community relations 

and maximise the benefits of change; 

the younger generation are willing to 

integrate

MH PS

'Social Impact of Population Change' 

report actions; East Midlands Strategic 

Migration Partnership; All Party 

Parliamentary Group on Migration

2 Possible 3
Major 

impact
6

Medium 

risk
Tolerate N/A Green

Projects & Major 

Change - Hungry

4.2

Fi
n

an
ci

al

C
P

4

Budget

There is a risk around the long term 

balancing of the budget with economic 

and funding uncertainty impacting on 

the ability of the Council to achieve its 

corporate priority of public service

The risk of lack of money and lack of 

certainty going forward; lack of approval 

of potential transformation projects; 

impact of Internal Drainage Board (IDB) 

levy

The opportunity to maximise the 

efficiency of Council services and 

continue to improve value for money; 

transformation programme; fairer 

funding

AS JN

Medium Term Financial Strategy; 

budgetary process; sound level of 

reserves; continued close monitoring; 

refresh of transformation programme; 

maintenance of the rateable value list; 

property fund; Strategic Alliance

3 Probable 4
Critical 

impact
12 High risk

Tolerate; continue to have a 

robust budget setting and 

MTFP process in place; 

continue to drive the 

delivery of the refreshed 

transformation programme

Delivery of MTFP; 

quarterly reporting; 

implementation of 

the transformation 

programme; lobby 

government for 

funds; assess impacts 

of next spending 

review when 

available

N/A Amber
Finance / Money - 

Creative & Aware

4.3

M
an

ag
er

ia
l

C
P

4

Capacity

There is a risk that capacity will impact 

on the ability of the Council to achieve 

its corporate priority of public service

The risk of a lack of capacity, 

recruitment and retention; potential 

changes in leadership; fewer staff, 

increasing workload; potential local 

government changes could affect staff 

recruitment

The opportunity to maximise staff 

resources by targetting priority areas, 

working with partners and shared 

services, improving recruitment and 

retention, preparing for changes in 

leadership

JG PS

Recruitment and retention project 

completed; succession planning 

ongoing; HR policies and procedures; 

good management practice; member 

training and development; there is 

capacity in priority areas; Strategic 

Alliance

2 Possible 3
Major 

impact
6

Medium 

risk

Tolerate; continue to train 

and develop staff and 

members and maximise 

resources by prioritising and 

shared services

Workforce planning; 

succession planning
N/A Green

People - Averse / 

Cautious

Link to risk appetite

If Treat, target risk 

score and 

explanation

Action/s
Risk control: Terminate; 

Tolerate; Transfer; Treat
Likelihood Management 

assurance (RAG)

Residual (net) risk score
C

o
rp

o
ra

te
 

P
ri

o
ri

ty
Impact TotalExisting control measures in placeR

ef Risk name Description

R
is

k 

ca
te

go
ry

P
FH

R
is

k 

o
w

n
er

APPENDIX A

P
age 57



4A AGC Q3 strategic risks

Negative risk Opportunity risk

1 to 4 1 to 4 1 to 16

Link to risk appetite

If Treat, target risk 

score and 

explanation

Action/s
Risk control: Terminate; 

Tolerate; Transfer; Treat
Likelihood Management 

assurance (RAG)

Residual (net) risk score
C

o
rp

o
ra

te
 

P
ri

o
ri

ty
Impact TotalExisting control measures in placeR

ef Risk name Description

R
is

k 

ca
te

go
ry

P
FH

R
is

k 

o
w

n
er

4.4

Fi
n

an
ci

al

C
P

4 Transformation 

Programme

There is a risk that the next phase of the 

transformation programme will impact 

on the ability of the Council to deliver 

public service

The risk of change; the risk of having a 

smaller workforce impacting on 

capacity; the risk of less control; the risk 

of financial uncertainty; the risk of 

working in partnership; the risk of 

distractions from achieving objectives 

The opportunity to build resilience; the 

opportunity to change our risk appetite 

and take more measured risks to 

achieve greater impact; the opportunity 

to work in partnership with others to 

maximise resources

AS PS

Transformation Programme; project 

management methodology; governance 

in place

2 Possible 3
Major 

impact
6

Medium 

risk

Tolerate; continue to drive 

the delivery of the 

transformation programme

Delivery of the 

transformation 

programme

N/A Amber
Projects & Major 

Change - Hungry

4.5

Fi
n

an
ci

al

C
P

4

Brexit

The Brexit process has resulted in 

economic uncertainty and there may be 

other changes around migration, the 

local workforce, and the legal 

framework in which we operate that are 

also uncertain at this time

The uncertainty is a negative risk

There are also potential opportunities as 

a result of the Brexit process, however, 

these are also uncertain at this time

RB PS

Medium Term Financial Strategy; 

budgetary process; sound level of 

reserves; continued close monitoring

3 Probable 3
Major 

impact
9

Medium 

risk

Tolerate; continue to have 

robust financial plans and 

monitoring in place pending 

more clarity

Quarterly financial 

reporting
N/A Green

Projects & Major 

Change - Hungry

4.6

G
o

ve
rn

an
ce

O
ve

ra
ll

Civil contingency 

risks

There are community risks which will 

impact on the ability of the Council to 

operate effectively

The risk of influenza type disease, east 

coast flooding, inland flooding, severe 

weather, fuel shortages, loss of critical 

infrastructure, animal disease, 

environmental pollution and industrial 

accidents, transport accidents

The opportunity to work with partners 

to assess, monitor and plan for these 

risks together

CA NW
Community Risk Register monitored by 

the Lincolnshire Resilience Forum (LRF)
2 Possible 4

Critical 

impact
8

Medium 

risk

Tolerate; continue to work 

with the LRF

Working in 

partnership with the 

Lincolnshire 

Resilience Forum

N/A Green
Business Continuity - 

Averse/Cautious

4.7

G
o

ve
rn

an
ce

O
ve

ra
ll

Compliance

There is a risk that non-compliance with 

legal requirements / governance / 

internal controls will impact on the 

ability of the Council to operate 

effectively

The risk of non-compliance with the 

legislative framework (including the 

Localism Act) and appropriate 

governance and controls e.g. 

safeguarding; financial loss due to fines; 

reputational damage; cyber security risk

The opportunity to ensure the continued 

effectiveness of the Council
JG JN

Internal controls, policies and 

procedures in place; annual governance 

statement; internal audit; safeguarding 

policy and procedures; ongoing work to 

improve contract management and to 

update the contract register; Member 

training programme and corporate 

training programme in place; revised 

scheme of delegation; effective 

complaints management; cyber security 

monitoring and reporting

2 Possible 3
Major 

impact
6

Medium 

risk

Tolerate; continue to 

ensure compliance with 

legal requirements, 

governance and internal 

controls; improve contract 

register

Internal audit 

reporting; review of 

contract register; 

Member Code of 

Conduct

N/A Green

Regulatory Standing 

& Legal Compliance - 

Creative & Aware

4.8

G
o

ve
rn

an
ce

O
ve

ra
ll

Reputation

There is a reputational risk to the 

Council which could impact on the ability 

of the Council to operate effectively

The risk of negative news stories 

affecting local people's views of the 

Council

The opportunity to communicate 

effectively about the work the Council is 

doing to serve the local community

JG PS

Internal and external communication, 

press releases, bulletins, website, social 

media; policy, protocol and training for 

speaking to the press

2 Possible 3
Major 

impact
6

Medium 

risk

Tolerate; continue to 

communicate effectively 

and work with the press to 

portray the Council 

accurately

Production of press 

releases and 

bulletins; use of 

social media; 

training; 

development of Visit 

Boston, Think 

Boston, My Boston

N/A Green
Reputation / Public 

Confidence - Hungry

P
age 58



 

 

Boston Borough Council 

Internal Audit Annual Report – 2020/21 

Final 

 

   

 

P
age 59

A
genda Item

 5



 
 

 

Appendix 1 - Internal Audit Assurances Given 2020/21 
Appendix 2 - Quality Assurance Framework 
 

Distribution List 

Chief Executive 
Deputy Chief Executive 
Chief Financial Officer 
Leader of the Council 
Chair, Audit & Governance Committee 
 

 

 

Contents  

 

 

Purpose of Annual Report 

 

03 

Our opinion on governance, risk and the control 
environment 

03 

 

How we came to our opinion 

 

04  

Scope of work 

 

06 
 

Delivery of internal audit plan 2020/21 

 

08 
 

Restrictions on scope 

 

08  

Effectiveness of Internal Audit 

 

08 
 

Quality Assurance 

 

09 

P
age 60



 
 

Management Summary 

Purpose of Annual Report                                                          

The Annual Internal Audit Report of Boston Borough Council aims to 
present a summary of the audit work undertaken over the past year. In 
particular:- 

 
 Include an opinion on the overall adequacy of and effectiveness 

of the governance framework and internal control system and the 
extent to which the Council relies on it; 

 Inform how the plan was discharged and the overall outcomes of 
the work undertaken; 

 Draw attention to any issues particularly relevant to the Annual 
Governance Statement.  

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

Opinion on the Governance Framework and Internal Control 
Environment 

For the twelve months ended 31 March 2021, based on the work we have 
undertaken and information from other sources of governance, my opinion 
on the adequacy and effectiveness of Boston Borough Council’s 
arrangements for governance, risk management and control is shown 
below.   

The internal audit plan was reduced by 25% due to the impact of COVID 
and the new Alliance and this reduction was agreed with the S151 officer. 
Five financial systems, plus a COVID assurance audit, an ICT audit and a 
governance, risk and fraud audit were completed together with detailed 
Combined Assurance work which covers assurances across the whole 
Council. There were also two pieces of consultancy work, one on the 
Alliance. 

From the work undertaken, we found that despite the significant pressures 
caused by Covid and the new Alliance, governance risk and control was not 
significantly affected. Internal Audit were not asked to provide any direct 
(non-audit) support relating to Covid. There were some access issues but 
generally across the whole plan this was not significant.  

Despite the reduction in the audit plan and other factors impacting the 
Council we have obtained sufficient assurance across all aspects of the 
opinion and are therefore able to issue an audit opinion. 

 

 

 

 

 

 
 

Key  
Red Inadequate Performance – Critical 

action required by management 
throughout the Council. 

 
Amber Performing Adequately – Some 

improvement required to manage a high 
risk in a specific business area and 
medium risks across the Council. 

 
Green Performing Well – No concerns that 

significantly affect the governance 
framework and successful delivery of the 
Council priorities 

 
*Our annual assurance ratings link to our four standard 
assurance ratings High and Substantial (Green), Limited 
(Amber) and Low (Red) 
 
Direction of Travel                    
 
 No change -stable               Improving                Reducing                   
  

                                                      
  

P
age 61



 
 

 

Assurance across Governance, Risk and Control 

Governance   Green – Performing Well 

Risk    Green – Performing Well  

Internal Control  Amber – Performing Adequately 

Financial Control  Green – Performing Well 

 

 

Direction of travel; stable  

Whilst the direction of travel is stable overall, there has been a slight change 
to the internal control assurance, based on recent ICT audit work. However, 
ICT has also recently moved across to PSPS and will benefit from the 
support from those new arrangements which is already addressing many of 
the agreed actions.  There are also some other high priority agreed actions. 

The assurance rating means that we have no concerns that affect the 
governance framework and successful delivery of the Council’s priorities. 
Across the four areas of governance there are some ongoing or planned 
improvements, which are detailed in the sections below 

 

 

 

 

P
age 62



 
 

 

How we came to our opinion 

Governance – “If management is about running the business – 

Governance is about seeing that it is run properly” 

1. Local Government has been and will continue to undergo significant 

change.  The way it operates and deliver services – either directly, 

with or through other organisations will provide challenges for 

managing risk, ensuring transparency and demonstrating 

accountability.  The importance to aim for the standards of the best 

and ensuring governance arrangements should not only be sound but 

also seen to be sound has never been greater. 

2. Good governance underpins everything the Council does and how it 

delivers services often comes under close scrutiny.  It is therefore 

vital that resources focus on agreed policy and priorities; that there is 

sound and inclusive decision making with clear accountability for the 

use of those resources. This ensures that the Council achieves the 

desired outcomes for the people of Boston Borough. 

3. The Audit & Governance Committee helps to ensure that these 

arrangements are working effectively.  They review the governance 

framework and consider the draft and final versions of the Annual 

Governance Statement. No significant governance issues were raised 

in the 2019/20 AGS; there were four areas of work, on which an 

update will be given in the 2020/21 AGS. 

4. Management gave Corporate Governance a Green assurance as part 

of the 2021 Combined Assurance work. A high-level Governance 

audit in 2021 provided Substantial assurance. We undertook a Covid 

assessment audit in 20-21 with Substantial Assurance.  

 

 

 

 

5. Taking the above information into account we have assessed the 

governance framework as green –performing well. 

 

Internal Control 

6. Our internal audit work during the year found one area with a 
‘Limited’ assurance opinion (ICT Assurance) and no areas with a 
'Low' assurance opinion. We made a small number of high priority 
recommendations. The outstanding recommendation position at the 
end of March 2021 is not yet available but, based on the position at 
the end of December 2020, there are no areas of concern. 

7. Our Combined Assurance report for 2021 showed that the Council 
continues to have good levels of assurance (68% Green, 31% 
Amber and 1% Red compared to 86% Green and 14% Amber in the 
previous year). 

8.     We took account of external audit’s 2019/20 annual opinion on 
statement of accounts and VFM opinion. 

9. Taking all of the above information into account we have assessed 
the internal control environment as Amber – performing adequately.   

 

 

 

 

 

P
age 63



 
 

Risk Management  

10. There is an established risk management framework in place for the 
Council to manage the key risks facing it at strategic and 
operational levels, with regular reporting to management and 
members. 

11. A high-level risk management audit in 2020/21 provided Substantial 
assurance. Management gave this area a Green assurance as part 
of the 2021 Combined Assurance work. 

12. On this basis we have assessed risk management as green – 
performing well – performing well. 

14. On this basis we have assessed risk management as– green – 
substantial assurance performing well. 

 

 

Financial Control 

13. Our work provides an important assurance element to support the 
External Auditor’s opinion on the Council’s Statement of 
Accounts. During the year we reviewed: 

 NNDR 
 Covid Assessment 
 Housing Benefit & Council Tax Support 
 Accountancy Key Controls 
 Payroll 

 

14.   Our work found that the Council has good financial management 
processes in place that work well, and we identified no areas 
where a ‘Limited’ or ‘Low’ assurance opinion was required. 

15.    We took account of external audit’s 2019/20 annual opinion on 
statement of accounts and VFM opinion. 

16.    We note the current position on Budget Setting and the Medium-
Term Financial Strategy. 

17. Taking the above information into account we have assessed 
financial control as green – performing well.   

 

Combined Assurance Report findings 

20. This annual internal audit report and opinion can be used by the Council 
to inform its Annual Governance Statement.  

We recommend that management consider whether any of the Red or 
Amber areas in the 2021 Combined Assurance Report should be 
included in the Annual Governance Statement, the Strategic Risk 
Register or the Directorate Risk Registers, after taking into account any 
recent improvements. 

  

P
age 64



 
 

 

Scope of Work 

21. The charts in Figure 3 shows the assurance opinions given in 
2020/21 compared to those in 2019/20.  Our audit plan includes 
different activities each year – it is therefore not unexpected that 
these vary; however, the assurance levels do give an insight on 
the application of the Council's control environment.   

22. The percentage of High and Substantial assurance audits have 
changed but there have been less audits done in 2020/21. There 
was one Limited assurance audit. 

 
Details of the areas reviewed can be found in Appendix 1. 

 
 
 
    2020/21 2019/20 2018/19 
 
 High   2  6  8  
 
 Substantial  5  6  9 
 
 Limited   1  0  0 
 
  

 
 
 
 

 
 
 
Figure 3 – Comparison of Assurances 

 

 
 

 
 
 
 
 

 
 
 
 
 

25%

63%

12%

Assurance Levels 2020/21

High

 Substantial

50%

50%

Assurance Levels 2019/20

High

 Substantial

P
age 65



 
 

 
 
 
 
23. The charts in Figure 4 show the comparison of internal audit 

recommendations made in 2020/21 compared to 2019/20.   
 

Details of the areas reviewed can be found in Appendix 1 
 
24. We track the implementation of agreed management actions. 

In 2020/21 management implemented 83% (5 out of 6) of 
recommendations due by the agreed target (compared to 100% in 
2019/20). 

 
A summary of the recommendations made in each audit and their 
current status can be found in Appendix 1. 

 
 
    2020/21 2019/20 2018/19 
 
 High   9  1  8 
 
 Medium  16  27  27 
 
 Total   25  28  35 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 
 
 
 
Figure 4 – Recommendations Made 
 
 

 
 
 

 
 
 

36%

64%

Recommendations 2020/21

High

Medium

4%

96%

Recommendations 2019/20

High

Medium

P
age 66



 
 

Delivery of internal audit plan 2020/21 

25. Audit & Governance Committee on 9th November 2020 approved 
the revised 2020/21 audit plan, which was based on 75% of the 
original plan due to the impact of Covid-19. We delivered 97% of the 
revised plan by the end of the financial year. 

 
26. Internal Audit’s performance is measured against a range of 

indicators.  The table below shows our performance on key 
indicators at the end of the year.  We are pleased to report 
successful achievement against most of our targets and will be 
closely monitoring the others to improve performance. 

 

Performance Indicator Target Actual @ 
31/03/2020 

Percentage of plan completed. 100% 97% 

Percentage of key financial systems 100% 100% 

Percentage of recommendations 
agreed. 

100% 100% 

Percentage of recommendations due 
implemented. 

100% or 
escalated 

83% (5 out of 6) 

Timescales: 

Draft report issued within 10 working 
days of completing audit 

Final report issued within 5 working 
days of closure meeting / receipt of 
management responses. 

Period taken to complete audit within 
3 months from fieldwork commencing 
to the issue of the draft report. 

 

 

100% 

 

100% 

 

80% 

 

 

100% - 7 out of 7 

 

100% - 7 out of 7 

 

71% - 5 out of 7 

Client Feedback on Audit (average) Good to excellent Good to excellent 

 

Restrictions on Scope / Disagreements 

27. In carrying out our work we identified no unexpected restrictions to 
the scope of our work, and we can confirm that Internal Audit’s 
independence has not been impaired during the year. 

 
28. Audit work is scheduled to fit around the work demands of the client 

and it is very rare that we have difficulties in gaining access to staff. 
 

Effectiveness of Internal Audit 

29. We regularly canvass opinions on audit planning, reporting and 
communication from management responsible for activities under 
review.  They score the effectiveness of our service as excellent, 
good, adequate or poor. 

30. The table in Figure 5 outlines the responses by management on our 
service.  In 2020/21 there has been a 100% questionnaire return 
rate so far and the good to excellent rating was maintained.   

Figure 5 – Client Feedback 

 
Questions: 

Audit Planning   Audit Report  Communication 
1.   Consultation on audit coverage 3.  Quality of report  6.  Feedback during the audit 
2.   Fulfilment of scope and objectives 4.  Accuracy of findings 7.  Helpfulness of auditor (s) 
    5.  Value of Report  8.  Prompt delivery of report 

Quality Assurance  

Excellent

Post Audit Questionaire Results

Good

Adequate

Poor

P
age 67



 
 

31. We recognise the importance of meeting customer expectations as 
well as conforming to the UK Public Sector Internal Audit Standards.  
We continually focus on delivering high quality audit to our clients – 
seeking opportunities to improve where we can.   

32. Our commitment to quality begins with ensuring that we recruit 
develop and assign appropriately skilled and experienced people to 
undertake your audits.   

33. Our audit practice includes ongoing quality reviews for all our 
assignments.  These reviews examine all areas of the work 
undertaken, from initial planning through to completion and 
reporting.  Key targets have been specified - that the assignment 
has been completed on time, within budget and to the required 
quality standard. 

 
34. Our Quality Assurance Framework (Appendix 2) includes all 

aspects of the Internal Audit Activity – including governance, 
professional practice and communication.  We are able to evidence 
the quality of our audits through performance and delivery of audits, 
feedback from our clients and an annual self-assessment and the 
annual review of the effectiveness of the Internal Audit Function by 
the Council.    

 
35. There is a financial commitment for training and developing staff. 

Training provision is continually reviewed through the appraisal 
process and regular one to one meetings.  A training programme 
has been developed to ensure that staff are kept up to date with the 
latest technical / professional information and to ensure that they 
are equipped with the appropriate skills to perform their role. 

 
36. Assurance Lincolnshire conforms to the UK Public Sector Internal 

Audit Standards including the Code of Ethics and we can confirm 
that we are complying with the Core Principles.  As part of our  

 
 

quality assurance framework we maintain a continuous 
improvement plan (QAIP). 

 
37. We have reviewed our internal quality assurance assessments and 

can confirm that our processes for planning, fieldwork and 
communicating results adhere to audit standards. 

38. Internal Audit, including Assurance Lincolnshire, received an 
external review in October 2016 (EQA – External Quality 
Assessment) against the Public Sector Internal Audit Standards 
(PSIAS).  

 A suggestion that key reports should be presented to CMT by the 
Audit Manager was taken on board and is still in place, in respect of 
the Audit Plan, the Combined Assurance report and the Annual 
Internal Audit Report. 

 The EQA will be undertaken again in early 2022. 

39. Although internal and external auditors carry out their work with 
different objectives in mind, many of the processes are similar and it 
is good professional practice that they should work together closely.  
Wherever possible, External Audit will place reliance and assurance 
upon internal audit work.   

40. Internal audit is an independent, objective assurance and consulting 
activity designed to add value and improve an organisation’s 
operations. It helps an organisation accomplish its objectives by 
bringing a systematic, disciplined approach to evaluate and improve 
the effectiveness of risk management, control and governance 
processes. We confirm that the internal audit activity is 
organisationally independent and resources available are adequate. 

P
age 68



Appendix 1 Internal Audit Work 2020/21  

 

     Outstanding   

Audit Area Date Assurance Recs 

High / Med 

Implem’d High Medium Not Yet 

Due 

Notes Direction 
of Travel 

Assurance work           

NNDR Jan 21 High 0 2 2      

Covid Assessment Jan 21 Substantial 0 0 N/A     Not previously 
audited 

Council Tax Mar 21 Substantial 1 2 1 1  1 High priority rec extended  

IT Assurance Map Update Mar 21 Limited 4 9    13  Not previously 
scored 

Housing Benefit & Council 
Tax Support 

Apr 21 Substantial 0 2 2      

Accountancy Key Controls Apr 21 High 0 0 N/A      

Payroll May 21 Substantial 2 0    2   

Governance, Risk & 
Counter Fraud 

 Substantial 2 1    3 Being finalised with 

management 
 

Total   9 16 5 1  19   

           

Other work           

Car Parking Decision 
Making 

Sep 20 Consultancy 0 2 2     Not previously 
audited 

Strategic Alliance Terms of 
Reference / Memorandum 
of Understanding  

Dec 20 Consultancy 0 8    4 Update awaited on other 

recs 

Not previously 
audited 

          

 

 

P
age 69



Appendix 2 - Quality Assurance Framework  

 

 

 

Total High / Medium 2020/21 Recs Made 

 

= 25  

 

Total not yet due = 19  

 

Net = 6  

Implemented in full = 5  

% Implemented = 83% (H & M) 

 

 

           

P
age 70



Appendix 2 - Quality Assurance Framework  

 
 

Audit Managers 
Principal 
Auditors 

Quality 

Assurance

Audit Managers 

Review 

Supervision

Individual 

Auditors 

HIA 

Quality  

Periodic quality assurance assessments 

 Obtain periodic assurance that engagement planning, fieldwork 
conduct and reporting /communicating results adheres to audit 
practice standards 

 Provide HIA with quarterly highlight reports on outcome of reviews 

. 

Ongoing monitoring – quality built into the audit 
process 

Quality checks and oversight are undertaken throughout 
the audit engagement ensuring that processes and 
practice are consistently applied and working well. 

, 
  

 Conduct all audit engagements in accordance with audit 
practice standards / PSIAS 

 Behave at all times in accordance with the Code of Ethics 
/ Code of Conduct  

 Promote the standards and their use throughout the 
Internal Audit activity 

 Commitment to delivering quality services   

Quality outcomes / process designed to deliver a 
consistently high quality audit service to our clients - fit for 

purpose / meet client expectations / conform to PSIAS  

Quality 
Assurance 

Quality 
Plan

HIA

 

 

Annual self- assessment  

  Head of Internal Audit - develop & maintain Quality Assurance 
Improvement Programme (QAIP) & improvement action plan 

 Focus on evaluating conformance with Internal Audit Charter, 
definition of Internal Audit, Code of Ethics & the Standards  

 Arrange an External Assessment – co-ordinated with Audit Committee 
(planned for January 2022) 

  
/ 

 Obtain on-going assurance that that engagement planning, 
fieldwork conduct and reporting /communicating results adheres 
to audit practice standards 

 Undertake engagement supervision and review 

 

Quality improvement plan - HIA reporting to Audit Committee 
on the outcome of Quality Assurance – with improvement 
action plan and any significant non-conformance included in 
the Annual Report / Annual Governance Statement  

 Plan  

&

Supervision

Review

Individual 

Auditors 

Principal 

Auditors & 

P
age 71



T
his page is intentionally left blank



 

 

 

 

 
 

REPORT TO: AUDIT AND GOVERNANCE 

DATE: 24TH MAY 2021 

SUBJECT: TRANSFER OF INTERNAL AUDIT SERVICE 

KEY DECISION:  NO 

REPORT AUTHOR: 

WARD(S) AFFECTED: 

ADRIAN SIBLEY, SECTION 151 OFFICER 

ALL 

EXEMPT REPORT? NO 

 

SUMMARY 

The Council’s internal audit function is currently undertaken through Lincoln City Council. This 

report seeks to transfer this function to Lincolnshire County Council (LCC) so that there is a 

greater level of resilience and a consistency in approach across the Alliance.  

 

RECOMMENDATIONS 

That the Audit & Governance Committee recommends to Cabinet the transfer of the internal 

audit function to Lincolnshire County Council. 

 

REASONS FOR RECOMMENDATIONS 

To build resilience into the internal audit service and allow a greater consistency in approach 

across the Alliance  in order to ensure ongoing conformity with the professional standards. 

 

OTHER OPTIONS CONSIDERED 

The current service provided by the County Council for East Lindsey District Council could 

tranfer to Lincoln City Council. However, there is not the same level of capacity at the City 

Council to provide the additional resilience.  

The service could be provided by private sector orgnaisations. There is though a lower level of 

expertise for Local Authority functions in the private sector and previous soft market testing has 

shown that the cost would be significantly higher.  

Page 73

Agenda Item 6



 

REPORT 

 
Background 

 

1.1 The requirement for an internal audit service is set within the Accounts and Audit Regulations 2015 
which state that: 
 
‘A relevant authority must undertake an effective internal audit to evaluate the effectiveness of its 
risk management, control and governance processes, taking into account public sector internal  
auditing standards or guidance’ 
 

1.2 The Service is currently provided through a contractual  arrangement for around 140 days of cover 
with Lincoln City Council. However, there are concerns around resilience and now that there is a 
shared working arrangement with East Lindsey, both through the Alliance and a shared back office 
provider, there is a real benefit in aligning the Internal Audit function. 

 
1.3 The proposal is to transfer this service to Lincolnshire County Council so that there is a consistent 

and streamlined approach across the Alliance.   

 

Reason for Review 

2.1 Whilst there are no specific issues highlighted witht the current service provision, there is 

an increasing need for specialist audit capacity specifically around areas such as fraud and 

ICT, and with a relatively small team it is difficult to develop the required range of expertise.   

 

2.2 More generally, a shared approach would allow the following benefits to be secured: 

 Streamlined service with single set of personnel for both Councils within the Alliance 
and PSPS 

 Combining all oversight work for both Councils into one principal officer thereby 
merging liaison meetings, management team and committee attendance and reports 

 Combined audit reviews providing assurance across the Alliance that will potentially 
reduce the number of days on each audit as there will be one audit report and closure 
process rather than two 

 Allow shared intelligence and highlight inconsistent practices.  

 A reduced day rate allowing annual savings of around £3k. 

 Reduced impact on PSPS as not having two sets of auditors reviewing the same systems.  

 Access to other expertise from the Assurance Lincs offer (Risk, Fraud, Health and Safety 
and Audit specialisms) 

 Increased resilience provided by a larger team to mitigate against sickness, loss of key 
staff etc. 

 

2.3 The provisional date for the transfer of the internal audit service, subject to necessary 

approvals and agreed contractual terms, is 1st July 2020. Whilst it is not currently proposed 

to make any changes to the level of audit days, this will be reviewed during the year as the 

risk environment changes and efficiencies can be achieved. 

 

Page 74



CONCLUSION 
 
There are a number of benefits to be realised form transferring the Internal Audit function from 
Lincoln City Council to Lincolnshire County Council and these are outlined within the report. 
 

FINANCIAL IMPLICATIONS 
 
The current budgeted cost of service is £46k. There will be a modest asaving of around £3k per 
annum as the County Council daily charge out rate is slightly lower than the City Council. The 
number of days is initially not expected to changed although this could change as efficiencies 
and changes to risk assessments are made. 
 
 
 

LEGAL IMPLICATIONS 

The Accounts and Audit Regulations 2015 provide that as a relevant authority, the Council must 

have an effective internal audit service.  The proposed approach to the delivery of the internal 

audit service is an identified means of ensuring the ongoing delivery of an effective service as 

required by law. 

 

CLIMATE CHANGE AND ENVIRONMENTAL IMPLICATIONS 

None 

 

EQUALITY AND SAFEGUARDING IMPLICATIONS 

None 

 

OTHER IMPLICATIONS  

None 

 

CONSULTATION 

Consultation has taken place both with the current providers and the Portfolio Holder for Finance. 

 

APPENDICES 

None 

 

BACKGROUND PAPERS 

None 

Page 75



 

CHRONOLOGICAL HISTORY OF THIS REPORT 

A report on this item has not been previously considered by a Council body 

 

REPORT APPROVAL  

Report author: Adrian Sibley, Section 151 Officer: Adrian.sibley@e-

lindsey.gov.uk 

Signed off by: Adrian Sibley, Section 151 Officer: Adrian.sibley@e-

lindsey.gov.uk 

Approved for publication: Councillor Noble, Portfolio Holder for Finance 

 

Page 76



 

 

 

 

 
 

REPORT TO: AUDIT & GOVERNANCE COMMITTEE 

DATE: 24 MAY 2021 

SUBJECT: ANNUAL FRAUD PERFORMANCE REPORT 

KEY DECISION: N/A 

REPORT AUTHOR: 

WARD(S) AFFECTED: 

CUSTOMER CONTACT OPERATIONS & DELIVERY MANAGER (PSPSL) 

ALL 

EXEMPT REPORT? NO 

 

SUMMARY 

This report outlines to Members the counter fraud activity that took place during 2020/21. 

 

RECOMMENDATIONS 

That Members note the content of the report. 

 

REASONS FOR RECOMMENDATIONS 

As part of good governance arrangements, Members should be aware of the counter fraud 

activity that takes place throughout the Council, the policies in place and the work that is 

undertaken with regard to the National Fraud Initiative. 

 

OTHER OPTIONS CONSIDERED 

None. 

 

  

Page 77

Agenda Item 7



REPORT 

 
1.0 Introduction 

1.1 The purpose of this report is to advise Members of the Audit & Governance Committee of 

counter fraud performance during the financial year 2020/2021 and the current position of 

the Fraud Section, including:- 

 The National Fraud Initiative 

 National Anti-Fraud Network  

 Single Persons Discount Review 

 The Single Fraud Investigation Service (SFIS) 

 DWP Benefit Fraud Sanctions 

 Corporate and Employee Conduct Cases 

 Member Conduct 

 Whistleblowing Reporting 

 Policies 

 Training 

 The way forward 
 
 
2.0 Background 
 
2.1 Fraud and conduct issues can involve council employees, elected members, partners, 

customers and the public. 
 
2.2 Both conduct and fraud issues can be identified/raised in a number of ways: - 
 

 Proactive investigation work, undertaken internally or externally, for example as part of 
the National Fraud Initiative. 

 Referral by employees, elected members, partner organisations, or members of the 
public as detailed in the Anti-Fraud and Corruption Policy. 

 Identification by Management. 
 
2.3 Conduct and fraud investigations have been undertaken within three sections of the 

council:- 
 

 The Fraud Section (within Credit Control) who were responsible for the administration 
and sanction of Housing Benefit as well as the investigation of corporate fraud.  Moving 
forward elements of this service are now provided by Public Sector Partnerships 
Limited. 

 People Services (now Human Resources at Public Sector Partnerships Limited) who 
investigate internal disciplinary and grievance matters. 

 Internal Audit, who investigate sensitive internal and external issues and those where 
this is a suspected financial loss. 
 

2.4 The Council, along with the other council’s in Lincolnshire, is part of the Lincolnshire County 
Fraud Partnership, which works collaboratively to minimise the amount of fraud 
perpetrated.  It shares best practice and supports specific initiatives to prevent fraud and 
increase awareness. 

 
Page 78



 
 
3.0 The National Fraud Initiative 
 
3.1 The National Fraud Initiative (NFI) is a data matching exercise operated by the Cabinet 

Office to tackle a range of fraud risks faced by the public sector across the country.  The use 

of data for NFI purposes is controlled to ensure compliance with data protection and 

human rights legislation. 

3.2 The main types of fraud and error that the NFI matching exercises targets are - 

 Payroll – Employees working for two or more authorities possibly linked to fraud and 
ghost employees. 

 Council Tax/Electoral Register – Single Person’s Discount of 25% in respect of Council 
Tax being incorrectly claimed. 

 Insurance Claimants – multiple insurance claims 

 Transport passes and permits – Multiple permits or deceased permit holders. 

 Creditors – duplicate payment to suppliers 

 Housing Benefit/Council Tax Support Claims – this will identify discrepancies in the claim 
information used to calculate benefit entitlement. 

 Housing Waiting List – this will identify any potential discrepancies with information 
customers have provided in support of their housing waiting list application. 

 Business Grant Funding Recipients has now been added to the list of datasets provided. 
 

3.3 The latest datasets have recently been received for review during 2021/22 and the 

outcomes will be reported in a future report. 

 

4.0 National Anti-Fraud Network 

4.1 During 2019/20, the Council joined the National Anti-Fraud Network (NAFN) to support the 

work undertaken by the Corporate Enforcement Group. 

4.2 NAFN Data and Intelligence service provides the Council with a single point of contact to 

access a wide range of information using robust legal gateways in order to assist with the 

prevention and detection of fraud.  The Network is used throughout the Council where 

legislative powers allow, especially in relation to enforcement and investigation type work. 

 

5.0 Single Person Discount (SPD) Review 

5.1 As part of collaborative working with the Lincolnshire Counter Fraud Partnership, a piece of 

work was commission in 2018/19 in order to review Council Tax accounts where a Single 

Persons Discount (SPD) has been awarded.  This was highly successful and outcomes were 

reported in the annual report for 2019/20. 

5.2 This exercise was scheduled to be repeated in 2020/21 and the results communicated in 

this report, however due to Covid-19, this work had to be deferred and will take place this 

financial year with outcomes reported in the next annual report. 

 

Page 79



 

6.0 Single Fraud Investigation Service (SFIS) 

6.1 The Chancellor of the Exchequer announced in the Autumn Statement 2013 that SFIS would 

be implemented as a single organisation covering the totality of welfare benefit fraud. 

6.2 The announcement confirmed that SFIS will be part of the Department for Work and 

Pensions (DWP) and therefore for Boston, Local Authority investigations in respect of 

welfare benefit fraud transferred to the DWP on 1 December 2015. 

6.3 Although the investigation of welfare benefit has transferred to the DWP, the Council 

remains responsible for authorising sanction action on Housing Benefit cases when the 

DWP investigations are complete. 

6.4 Council Tax Support fraud is not included in this transfer and the Council makes its own 

arrangements for the investigation of this type of fraud. 

 

7.0 Benefit Fraud Investigations Conducted by SFIS 

7.1 There were no benefit fraud sanctions relating to Housing Benefit delivered by the 

Department for Work and Pensions on behalf of the Council during 2020/21.  DWP staff 

were seconded to Universal Credit claims as a result of the Covid-19 outbreak.  These 

employees are now returning to their substantive duties and fraud investigation work is 

now resuming. 

 

8.0 Corporate Fraud and Employee Conduct Cases 

8.1 During 2020/21 there was one instance of attempted fraud where an ex-employee of the 

council used the council’s address as the registered office for their limited company.  This 

matter was rectified with Companies House and there was no loss to the council. 

 

9.0 Member Conduct 

9.1 There were no complaints against members in connection with fraud in 2020/21. 

 

10.0 Whistleblowing Reporting 

10.1 Assurance Lincolnshire manages the Confidential Reporting Line on behalf of the 

Lincolnshire Counter Fraud Partnership and acts as a central point of contact for people to 

report suspected fraud. 

10.2 During 2019/20, two referrals of benefit fraud were made using the reporting hotline.  The 

allegations were passed to the Department for Work and Pensions for investigation and we 

made our own checks in respect of Council Tax Reduction Support.   

10.3 There was one allegation that an individual was permanently residing in a holiday home, 

however our own internal enquiries confirmed that this was not the case and there was no 

evidence that fraud had been committed. 

Page 80



 

11.0 Policies 

11.1 Both the Anti Fraud and Corruption Policy and the Prosecutions and Sanctions Policy are 

scheduled for a review in 2021/22. 

 

12.0 Training 

12.1 We are looking to use the fraud training package provided by PSPS Limited as part of the 

induction and as refresher training across the Alliance and Elected Member. 

 

13.0 Fraud Risk 

13.1 As part of good governance arrangements, it is recommended that the Fraud Risk Register 

is presented to Elected Members for information or comment. 

13.2 This register is periodically reviewed and monitored by the Risk Owners to ensure that risk 

is identified and mitigated as much a possible. 

13.3 The register can be found at Appendix A of this report. 

 

14.0 The way forward 

14.1 During 2021/22, work will continue with the Lincolnshire County Fraud Partnership to 

minimise the risk of fraud and corruption entering the Council’s systems and procedures.  

Alongside other Lincolnshire authorities, we intend to: - 

 Continue raising awareness of fraud – delivering promotional campaigns, fraud clinics and 
encouraging completion of the e-learning approach to fraud. 

 Identify opportunities to generate revenue from proactive work on fraud and error. 

 Continue to develop networks to facilitate sharing of fraud intelligence and best practice. 
(E.g. Police and Trading Standards) 

 Identify joint working/ partnership opportunities to maximise fraud resources and improve 
fraud resilience. 

 Continue to identify, mitigate and monitor fraud risks to the council. 
 
 
CONCLUSION 
 
15.0 This report has documents the fraud activity that has taken place during 2020/21 and sets 

out the Council’s planned fraud work for 2021/22. 
 
15.1 Proactive fraud work has been less than in previous years, mainly caused by the diversion of 

resource in order to respond to priorities caused by the Covid-19 Pandemic. 
 
 

 

 
Page 81



 

FINANCIAL IMPLICATIONS 
 
It is accepted that fraud affects the UK across all sectors and causes significant harm.  The last, 

most reliable and comprehensive set of figures was published by the National Fraud Authority in 

2013, and indicates that fraud may be costing the UK £52bn a year. 

Within these figures the estimated loss to local authorities totalled £2.1bn.  This does not 

include the indirect costs of responding to and investigating fraud. 

This report does not have any known financial implications for Boston Borough Council as there 

are no identified cases of fraud. 

 
 

 

LEGAL IMPLICATIONS 

There are many pieces of legislation that can be used when relevant in order to sanction fraud.  

These include Section 111 and 112 of the Social Security Administration Act 1992, Council Tax 

Reduction Scheme (Detection of Fraud and Enforcement) (England) Regulations 2013 and 

Proceeds of Crime Act 2002. 

 

 

CLIMATE CHANGE AND ENVIRONMENTAL IMPLICATIONS 

None. 

 

EQUALITY AND SAFEGUARDING IMPLICATIONS 

None. 

 

OTHER IMPLICATIONS  

None. 

 

CONSULTATION 

No consultation undertaken. 

APPENDICES 

APPENDIX A Fraud Risk Register 

 

  

Page 82



 

BACKGROUND PAPERS 

No background papers as defined in Section 100D of the Local Government Act 1972 were used 

in the production of this report. 

CHRONOLOGICAL HISTORY OF THIS REPORT 

Name of body Date 

Audit & Governance Committee A report of this type is presented to Audit & 

Governance Committee on an annual basis. 

 

REPORT APPROVAL  

Report author: Kelly Clarke 

Customer Operations & Delivery Manager PSPSL 

T: 01205 314323 

Kelly.Clarke@pspsl.co.uk 

Signed off by: Phil Perry, AD – Support Services & Partnerships 

Approved for publication: Cllr Jonathan Noble – Portfolio Holder Finance & 

Commercial 

 

Page 83



This page is intentionally left blank



Risks 2020_21 Fraud

1 to 4 1 to 4 1 to 16

F1

Fi
n

an
ci

al

Council Tax, 

Housing Benefit, 

business rates 

fraud

Risk of false statements or lack of 

notification of changes; transient nature 

of our population; seasonal working; CT 

£25m received pa; HB approx £18m paid 

pa; business rates approx £20m 

received pa

PP

Cross checking of information; 

application and documentation checks; 

checking empty properties; fraud policy 

in place; Fraud Officer and Business 

Rates Assurance Manager in post; NFI 

checks; Government housing benefit 

matching scheme (HBMS); use of 

prosecution, cautions and penalties; 

publication of prosecutions to act as a 

deterrent; prevention and detection 

controls in place; LCFP & CIPFA

3 Probable 4
Critical 

impact
12 High risk Cautious N Tolerate N/A N/A

F2

G
o

ve
rn

an
ce

Electoral fraud

Risk of fraudulent voting; fraudulent 

acts by canvassers, poll clerks/officers; 

fraudulent acts by individuals

LB

Supervisory role at counts; postal votes 

count supervised; access controls at 

polling stations and counts; ballot box 

controls; application form checks

2 Possible 4
Critical 

impact
8

Medium 

risk
Cautious Y Tolerate N/A N/A

F3

Fi
n

an
ci

al

Financial fraud

Risk of BACS fraud; BACS = electronic 

processing of financial transactions 

(originally Bankers Automated Clearing 

System); risk of investment fraud; risk of 

payment of bogus invoices; risk of 

manipulation to inappropriately write-

off invoices; Risk of misrepresenting the 

assets and income of the Council; 

accounting risk is highly regulated and 

corporate fraud instances are 

infrequent; approximately £8m staffing, 

plus £5m supplies and services per 

annum; Risk of ineffective controls in 

place leading to money laundering 

through cash overpayments and 

subsequently obtaining a refund; risk of 

cheque fraud leading to theft, 

tampering, deposit to third party, 

cashing personal cheques

AS

Physical security and system access 

controls in place; separation of duties; 

treasury management policy; regular 

bank reconciliations; contract 

regulations in place; validation with 

supporting documentation; regular 

independent audits; electronic payment 

instead of cheques wherever possible 

and use of cheques is now minimal; NFI 

checks; annual fraud report to Audit & 

Governance Committee

2 Possible 4
Critical 

impact
8

Medium 

risk
Cautious Y Tolerate N/A N/A

F4

G
o

ve
rn

an
ce

Payroll fraud

Risk of ghost employees; amended 

payment details; changes to expenses 

and reductions; withholding payroll 

leavers; risk of overclaiming of 

allowances

JB

System access controls in place; 

authentication of changes required; HR 

guidance and policy in place; payment 

controls in place; independent checks 

carried out; NFI checks

2 Possible 4
Critical 

impact
8

Medium 

risk
Cautious Y Tolerate N/A N/A

Reviewed 23.12.20 - 

no change

F5

P
h

ys
ic

al

Theft

Risk of theft of intellectual property and 

information; theft or abuse of 

confidential information; risk of theft of 

computer equipment; false write-offs; 

risk of theft of purchase cards and/or 

PINs; risk of theft of cash; risk of theft of 

non ICT assets and unauthorised use of 

Council assets e.g. stores, materials, 

vehicles, plant

JG / 

PP / 

SR

Anti-fraud and corruption policies; 

whistleblowing policy; IT security policy; 

password technology; data searches; 

physical security measures in place; 

asset tagging; inventory maintained; IT 

security policy in place; financial 

regulations; contract regulations; 

policies in place for use of purchase 

cards and taking cash payments; bank 

controls; regular audits; asset tagging; 

inventories maintained; mileage records 

kept

2 Possible 4
Critical 

impact
8

Medium 

risk
Cautious Y Tolerate N/A N/A

F6

G
o

ve
rn

an
ce

Bribery, 

inducement, 

conflict of interest

Risk of bribery, blackmail, favouritism or 

corruption leading to debts being 

waived or reduced; or assets obtained 

at a favourable price; or other 

inappropriate gain; risk of inducement 

from Members or staff receiving gifts, 

hospitality, foreign travel; risk of non 

declaration of conflicts of interest

KC / 

LB

Constitution; anti-fraud and corruption 

policies; whistleblowing policy; codes of 

conduct; Bribery Act; hospitality 

register; register of interests; public 

scrutiny; Audit & Governance 

Committee; Annual Governance 

Statement; Directors' Assurance 

Statement; annual reminder to staff and 

Members

2 Possible 3
Major 

impact
6

Medium 

risk
Cautious Y Tolerate N/A N/A

F7

C
o

n
tr

ac
tu

al

Procurement 

fraud

Risk of procurement fraud; contractor 

or supplier selected as a result of 

favouritism or corruption; corrupt 

tendering process; weak contract 

management; abuse of position for 

personal gain; risk of ghost suppliers or 

amended payment details

PP

Contract regulations; anti-fraud and 

corruption policies; whistleblowing 

policy; code of conduct; system access 

controls in place; authentication 

required; procurement advice from 

Kings Lynn & West Norfolk Council; gifts 

and hospitality policy

2 Possible 3
Major 

impact
6

Medium 

risk
Cautious Y Tolerate N/A N/A

F8

G
o

ve
rn

an
c

e Recruitment fraud
Risk of recruitment fraud, bogus people 

and/or bogus qualifications
JB

Clear recruitment guidance in place 

including the requirement to check 

references; NFI checks; CRB checks

2 Possible 3
Major 

impact
6

Medium 

risk
Cautious Y Tolerate N/A N/A

reviewed 23.12.20 - 

no change

Q2 comments Q3 comments Q4 comments

Within 

appetite? 

(Y/N)

Q1 comments
Management 

assurance (RAG)R
ef

R
is

k 

ca
te

go
ry

Risk name Description

R
is

k 

o
w

n
er Existing control measures in place and 

contextual information

Residual (net) risk score
Risk control: Terminate; 

Tolerate; Transfer; Treat

Action/s (monitored 

in P+)

If Treat, target risk 

score and 

explanation

Likelihood Impact Total

Risk appetite: 

Averse; Cautious; 

Open; Hungry

P
age 85



Risks 2020_21 Fraud

1 to 4 1 to 4 1 to 16

Q2 comments Q3 comments Q4 comments

Within 

appetite? 

(Y/N)

Q1 comments
Management 

assurance (RAG)R
ef

R
is

k 

ca
te

go
ry

Risk name Description

R
is

k 

o
w

n
er Existing control measures in place and 

contextual information

Residual (net) risk score
Risk control: Terminate; 

Tolerate; Transfer; Treat

Action/s (monitored 

in P+)

If Treat, target risk 

score and 

explanation

Likelihood Impact Total

Risk appetite: 

Averse; Cautious; 

Open; Hungry

F9

C
o

n
tr

ac
tu

al

Contractor fraud Risk of collusion between contractors CMT

Contract regulations; anti-fraud and 

corruption policies; contract audits; 

audit of tender procedures; continue to 

raise awareness of managers need to 

be vigilant; procurement advice from 

Kings Lynn & West Norfolk Council

2 Possible 2
Minor 

impact
4

Medium 

risk
Cautious Y Tolerate N/A N/A

F1
0

G
o

ve
rn

an
ce

Employee fraud

Risk of employee fraud e.g. taking flexi 

time not due, not working contracted 

hours, falsified timesheets, overtime 

and expenses

JB

Line management and working time 

records; HR policies and procedures; 

sickness reporting; countersignatures; 

collusion needed; budgetary control 

reports 

2 Possible 3
Major 

impact
6

Medium 

risk
Cautious Y Tolerate N/A N/A

Reviewed 15.12.20  - 

no change

F1
1

G
o

ve
rn

an
c

e Insurance fraud
Risk of false and/or inflated insurance 

claims being made
PP

Low number of claims received, 

appropriate investigation and 

authorisation of insurance claims; 

National Fraud Initiative (NFI)

1
Hardly 

ever
3

Major 

impact
3

Medium 

risk
Cautious Y Tolerate N/A N/A

F1
2

G
o

ve
rn

an
ce

Business Rates 

Grant Fraud

Risk of fraudulent claimed grants 

Business Rates Grants issued as part of 

the Coronavirus Support Scheme

KC

Cross checking of information; 

application and documentation checks; 

; fraud policy in place; Business Rates 

Assurance Manager in post; ; matching 

scheme (HBMS); use of  prevention and 

detection controls in place - Post Grant 

check assurance checking in place.

3 Probable 3
Major 

impact
9

Medium 

risk
Cautious Y Tolerate N/A N/A

P
age 86



 

AUDIT & GOVERNANCE COMMITTEE WORK PROGRAMME 2021/22 
 

MEETING 
 

AGENDA ITEMS 

24 MAY  
2021 

 Audit Completion Report Follow-Up Letter - Mazars 

 Annual Audit Letter - Mazars 

 Internal Audit – Progress Report 2021/22 – Internal Auditor 

 Quarter 3 Risk Report – IT & Transformation Manager  

 Internal Audit Annual Report 2020/21 – Internal Auditor 

 Annual Fraud Performance Report 2020/21 – Customer Contact 
Operations & Delivery Manager (PSPSL) 

 Transfer of Internal Audit Service – Section 151 Officer  

 Monitoring Officer Update – Monitoring Officer 
 

13 SEPT  
2021 
 

 Quarter 4 2020/21 / Quarter 1 2021/22 Risk Report – IT & Transformation 
Manager 

 Financial Report 2020/21 – Section 151 Officer    

 Treasury Management and Capital Strategy Update – Quarter 1 2021/22 – 
Section 151 Officer    

 Internal Audit – Progress Report 2021/22 – Internal Auditor 

 Statement of Accounts (including Annual Governance Statement) – 
Section 151 Officer 

 Monitoring Officer Update – Monitoring Officer 
 

8 NOV  
2021 

 Quarter 2 Risk Report 2021/22 – IT & Transformation Manager 

 Treasury Management - 2021/22 Mid-Year Update – Section 151 Officer 

 Internal Audit Progress Report 2021/22 – Internal Auditor 

 Monitoring Officer Update – Monitoring Officer 
 

24 JAN  
2022 

 Draft Budget Setting Report and Medium Term Financial Strategy 2022/23 
- 2026/27 – Section 151 Officer    

 Accounting Policies – Section 151 Officer    

 Treasury Management Update 2021/22 - Quarter 3 – Section 151 Officer    

 Internal Audit Progress Report 2021/22 – Internal Auditor 

 Draft Internal Audit Plan 2022/23 – Internal Auditor 

 Monitoring Officer Update – Monitoring Officer 
 

28 MAR  
2022 

 External Audit Progress Report – Mazars 

 Quarter 3 Risk Report 2021/22 – IT & Transformation Manager 

 Combined Assurance – Status Report – Internal Auditor 

 Internal Audit Progress Report 2021/22 – Internal Auditor 

 Internal Audit Plan 2022/23 – Internal Auditor 

 Monitoring Officer Update – Monitoring Officer 
 

 

 

Page 87

Agenda Item 8



This page is intentionally left blank


	Agenda
	A MINUTES
	1 AUDIT COMPLETION REPORT FOLLOW-UP LETTER
	2 ANNUAL AUDIT LETTER
	3 INTERNAL AUDIT - PROGRESS REPORT 2021/22
	4 RISK REPORT QUARTER 3 2020/21
	Appendix A - Audit & Governance Committee Quarter 3 Strategic Risks

	5 INTERNAL AUDIT ANNUAL REPORT 2020/21
	6 TRANSFER OF INTERNAL AUDIT SERVICE
	7 ANNUAL FRAUD PERFORMANCE REPORT
	Appendix A - Fraud Risk Register

	8 WORK PROGRAMME

